Financial
F R ‘ Repor’rlng Council
E ® B

Impartiality
BFRE

Annual Report 2013 F &



THE ROLE OF THE FRC

ENFSHE HF YRS

To conduct
independent
investigations into possible
auditing and/or reporting
irregularities in relation to
listed entities

BAER T ER AR /
R/ RESHENTETE iy
. mmEu@m= gl

To enquire i
into possible Vs
non-compliance with
accounting requirements

— "3

on the part of listed entities

.wmmuuuunul-’d

R k[ kel
; o W . 285+ SO 1 g (i o
: SAEmEETT RLETWERATRREE#R s
—— BHRENEE —
' BEE

INPANIE

The FRC builds its impartiality upon the core values of
independence, robustness and transparency, making ‘Newton’s
Cradle’ an apt symbol of its work. Though each sphere is separate,
each carries equal momentum and is integral to the working
of the entire system. Likewise, the FRC’s core values generate
powerful momentum: building public trust in the integrity of the
financial reporting of listed entities, maintaining Hong Kong’s
status as an international financial centre, and contributing to
audit regulatory reform.
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s a world-leading financial centre, Hong Kong enjoys one of the world’s

best reputations for openness, fairness, and the rule of law. As an
independent audit regulator, the FRC plays a significant part in upholding
this enviable status, and in protecting the interests of investors in our world
renowned capital market.

New Initiatives to Enhance Operations

Over the year, the FRC has continued to enhance its core to meet the
demands of a broadening portfolio of work, along with new regulatory
developments. We have significantly strengthened the composition and
profile of our committees in order to deal with our increasingly complex
case load. We have also expanded the scope of the work of some of our
committees, to reflect the changing market environment and the developing
roles of the FRC.

During the year, we also refined our corporate communication strategies
with the aim of delivering messages to our stakeholders more effectively. For
instance, we proactively engaged stakeholders by organizing press events to
discuss regulatory issues directly, an example of which is the release of our
international comparative study on independent audit oversight. We also
improved our website and added richer content in a way that successfully
attracted more online visitors.

Fostering a Culture of Excellence

This is now my second year as Chairman of the FRC. Since joining, my
emphasis has been on three essential qualities: impartiality, transparency
and simplicity. We have worked to infuse these qualities throughout our
organization at every level.
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Oversight of the audit profession is clearly moving from
self-regulation towards a regime that emphasizes

independence, transparency and robustness.
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Alongside the impartiality that comes with our independence as an audit
regulator, we aim to operate as transparently as possible and in a manner
that is both highly efficient, and powerfully robust.

These are qualities that | believe are essential in building public trust and
ensuring the financial statements of listed entities are reliably accurate and
informative.

I am pleased to report that, over the past year, the FRC’s commitment to its
task of strengthening regulatory oversight of the financial reporting of listed
entities has been unwavering. As a result we have had a busy and active
year, undertaking a number of initiatives, such as improving our risk-based
financial statements review programme and creating a new “FRC’s Decision”
section on our website, and making considerable progress with activities
under development. At the same time, we have been very active in laying the
groundwork for audit regulatory reform to come to fruition.

Preparing for Audit Regulatory Reform

A major aspect of the FRC’s work over the past year has concerned
preparations for audit regulatory reform in Hong Kong.

Evolving regulatory landscape

The collapse of Enron in 2002 had a significant impact on global financial
systems, sparking changes in the global audit regulatory framework that
are still taking place. Over a decade later, many international financial
centres have moved away from the previous norm of industry self-regulation
and instead adopted a much more impartial and transparent system of
independent audit oversight.

In the United States, for example, the 2002 Sarbanes-Oxley Act created the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB), making auditors of
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
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US public companies subject to external and independent oversight, as they
had not been previously. In 2006, the European Commission (EC) tightened
the regulation of auditors within its member states with its Statutory Audit
Directive, which required the audit oversight bodies of member states to
be both independent and governed by non-practitioners. Also in 2006, the
International Forum of Independent Audit Regulators (IFIAR) was established
to enable independent regulators of the auditing profession to share their
experiences and findings from recent audit inspections, engage in dialogue
with international stakeholders on how audit regulators can enhance investor
protection and receive updates on recent developments in audit policy and
enforcement matters.

These examples make clear the global trend; oversight of the audit profession
is clearly moving from self-regulation towards a regime that emphasizes
independence, transparency and robustness.

The Hong Kong context

Hong Kong’s position as an international financial centre makes it imperative
that our business and financial sectors continue to be underpinned by a
robust regulatory regime for auditors of listed entities. We currently have
an established system of audit oversight, but enhancing it further to align it
with international benchmarks will require legislative reforms. The FRC has
been assisting the Government in its efforts to develop proposals for reform
suitable for Hong Kong. To this end, we commissioned an international
comparative study by Deloitte LLP (UK) on the topic of independent audit
oversight, which was published in October 2013.

Of 40 jurisdictions around the world, the report examined six in detail: the
European Union, the United Kingdom, the United States, Canada, Australia
and Singapore. The report reveals that the audit regulators of these six
jurisdictions are all independent of the profession, and all have authority
over, at the least, auditors of listed entities. It further shows that all the
relevant regulators in these 40 jurisdictions currently meet the regulatory
or equivalence requirements of the EC, and are members of IFIAR. This is
important and highly relevant because the EC and IFIAR are the two major
international institutions involved in fostering cross-border cooperation and
reciprocity in enforcement between regulators globally.

EC regulatory equivalence requires audit regulators to have ultimate
responsibility for the oversight of registration, inspection, investigation,
enforcement, standards of professional ethics and auditing, and continuing
professional education. Membership of IFIAR is restricted to independent
regulators that are responsible for the inspection of audit firms, and that
have comprehensive enforcement powers, including the ability to administer
fines and to remove audit licenses or registration.

Under its current regulatory set-up, Hong Kong does not meet the requirements
for EC Equivalence, nor for membership of IFIAR. Both require audit regulators
to be independent of the profession, and to be governed by non-practitioners.
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Publicizing the report
Given the significance of the report for the investing public, the FRC held a

special press briefing. I am delighted to report that the event was a major
success, in terms both of the public interest aroused and the positive media
coverage it received. Our goal was to communicate clearly to Hong Kong the
pressing need for audit oversight reform and to generate public discussion on
the options for reform available, and | believe the briefing certainly achieved
that goal.
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On 10 October 2013, Mr John Poon (right) and Mr Mark Dickens (left) hosted a press briefing on the publication

of the report on independent audit oversight.
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Our understanding is that the Government plans to carry out a public
consultation regarding regulatory reform in 2014. This is when reform
proposals will be made available to the public for comment and these reform
proposals will offer suggestions on matters such as the general direction,
objectives and scope of reform required. We are very confident that these
proposals can provide Hong Kong with an enhanced regulatory regime that
will better protect the investing public, and will also strengthen confidence
in the integrity of our financial reporting. Ultimately, the proposals should
further entrench Hong Kong’s status and reputation as a major international
financial centre.

The process of regulatory reform is still evolving, however. Our immediate
energies will be devoted to actively supporting the process, and seeing it
successfully completed and implemented. We do anticipate that the reform
will bring a greater range of responsibilities and duties for the FRC, and we
are already making preparations for this.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
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Impartiality: fundamental to the FRC

Within the FRC, impartiality is guarded by a stringent system of internal
controls, checks and balances, and accountability and audit procedures.
These are constraints that are built into our organization; they are further
supplemented by emphasis on a culture of transparency and accountability.

Our Council Members take their responsibilities very seriously and ensure
that matters are dealt with free from conflict of interest as defined under
the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance. The FRC also maintains a sound
and effective internal control system, and an organizational structure within
which authority is clearly defined so that it includes a proper segregation
of duties. At the same time, our Honorary Advisory Panel and Financial
Reporting Review Panel (FRRP) enhance the standard of our work by
providing professional advice on cases in hand. In addition, the Process
Review Panel (PRP) ensures that cases coming before the FRC are handled
strictly in accordance with established procedures.

Ensuring Operational Excellence

Each year, the PRP reviews a representative selection of the cases handled by
the FRC over the preceding calendar year to ensure that the FRC had handled
all the cases in accordance with its internal procedures. In 2013, the PRP
reviewed nine such cases. The PRP targets to publish its annual report in April
2014.

Encouraging Multi-level Collaboration

One of the roles of the FRC that has been growing in importance is that of
generating discussion and debate among its stakeholders, particularly on
issues such as injecting new elements of independence into the regulatory
framework for auditors. This has involved us actively engaging in dialogue
and discussion with the Government, other regulators, professional bodies
and the investing public throughout the year.

Collaboration with other regulators has continued in an open, cooperative
manner. We have held regular meetings with other regulators in which
we have shared insights and opinions on regulatory developments; these
meetings have also been important in achieving across-the-board efficiencies
in enforcing regulations in the Hong Kong capital market. These are
in addition to our regular programmes of referrals and joint reviews of
individual cases.

Around the world, there is a continuing trend towards developing consistent
global principles and practices relating to the financial reporting of listed
entities and their auditors, and the regulations that apply to them. We have
kept abreast of debates and new developments globally by participating in
a number of international conferences, seminars and workshops throughout
the year. In 2013, FRC delegates attended global conferences and workshops
hosted by the PCAOB in the United States, as well as meetings of the
International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board and IFIAR.
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Vote of Thanks

Within the FRC, we experienced an important transition in the past year,
when Dr PM Kam retired as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) on 31 March 2013.
I would like to express my gratitude to Dr Kam for the dedicated commitment
he has shown to the FRC in the years of his tenure as CEO.

On 1 April 2013 our new CEO, Mr Mark Dickens, came on board. Mr Dickens
brings with him substantial experience as a financial regulator both in Hong
Kong and overseas jurisdictions. Having previously been a Council Member of
the FRC, he has already made a valuable contribution to the organization’s
development; | look forward to his further contributions at the helm.

More recently, the FRC welcomed Ms Wincey Lam, our new Deputy CEO,
who joined us in December 2013. Ms Lam comes to the FRC with over 15
years of experience in financial reporting and auditing. This new position was
created in the light of the increasingly heavy workload of the FRC, which has
arisen due to increase in both case load and complexity of cases and the need
to prepare for reform of the audit regulatory system in Hong Kong.

After an exceptionally busy year that brought with it many challenges,
I would like to offer my heartfelt thanks to our Council Members, our
Honorary Advisers, Members of the FRRP and PRP for the enormous
contributions they have made to the FRC.

The FRC team has demonstrated high levels of professionalism and
commitment and | wish to thank all of them for their dedication and support
throughout.

Looking Forward

The move towards regulatory reform has generated powerful momentum
over the past year. It will continue, and inevitably reach its eventual
conclusion. In response, at the FRC we will strive to take on any possible
increase in responsibilities that reform will bring, while enhancing the quality
of our existing work. Our aim is to contribute fully to maintaining an effective
audit regulatory regime for Hong Kong.

We are truly, | believe, on the threshold of an era of historic transformation
in audit regulation in Hong Kong. | am confident that, with the support of
our stakeholders, the FRC will negotiate this transformation with energy,
commitment, and competence, and we will see Hong Kong emerge as a full-
fledged independent audit regulator jurisdiction, operating on a full par with
best global practice.
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am pleased to report on the FRC’s work over the past year in this, my

first Annual Report as Chief Executive Officer. | must begin, however, by
offering my warmest thanks to my predecessor, Dr PM Kam, for the time he
devoted and the dedication he displayed to the work of the FRC during his
tenure.

One of the most important characteristics of the FRC is the fact that it
operates in a completely fair and impartial manner. Fairness and impartiality
are indeed core values upon which we base our work of enhancing the
protection of investors, through our promotion of high quality financial
reporting in Hong Kong.

Acting fairly and impartially involves avoiding any situations where conflicts
of interest arise, and we have stringent procedures to ensure that such
situations cannot occur. For instance, members of the Council, the Audit
Investigation Board (AIB), the Financial Reporting Review Panel (FRRP) and
other committees, as well as individual staff members, are all required
to declare their interests in any matter that arises in the course of their
performing any function under the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance
(FRCO). Once an interest has been declared, that person may not be present
during any deliberation regarding, or take part in any decision relating to, the
matter in which they have declared an interest. Indeed, they may not even
be given any document, or relevant part of a document, concerning the issue
and the deliberations or decisions surrounding it.
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“ We have put much effort into assisting the Government
in developing reform proposals that will further enhance
the independence of Hong Kong’s audit regulator

REERNBEBFFEEREL R - UE—SINBEBET
EETIEREVYE -

Mark Dickens, JP, Chief Executive Officer
NENBKFEME FEms

These stringent procedures have given rise to some challenges for our ELBEENADRFEBE—FHABHKE SRk
Council over the past year. Specifically, on some occasions our Council has & - EfHRABEETERLT  FEAEAKI
found it difficult to achieve a quorum at meetings because four or more  EAXER— B ZBEBHRAEEL FZMEBAER
Council members have declared an interest in one or more of the matters AT EAZ - R ML ABEBEEELER
under discussion. Together with the Financial Services and Treasury Bureau, BT & 2 iz 0 R A R AT # R ISR AR A
we have been looking at ways of avoiding this without compromising our % ° BB B BRIE ( A HERDIEH ) T I
core principles. This problem has been resolved by the appointment of  FXE##R ©

temporary members under the FRCO.

Regulatory reform has been one of the major focuses of our work in 2013,  EERER2013FMNEETIEZ— - ARERIH
We have put much effort into assisting the Government in developing reform  BIEBF#HIERE H R NWE—FNBEBSHEFEES
proposals that will further enhance the independence of Hong Kong’s audit ~ #I|EXIBZ M - ARFEIRMAEA S ~ B EE
regulatory system. For the FRC, this has involved devoting much manpower,  BYEEFwmXF - AR ZEB I EMETNERA
time and expenditure to preparing discussion papers and organizing the RSB Bt EEE RS o

commissioning and publication of the independent consultant’s report on

independent audit oversight.

Despite the heavy workload brought about by our involvement in the audit BEBRIEENENTIEEEE > ARBE12EA
regulatory reform process, | am pleased to report that both our general — KEE/EN(EREIEHEREIEF - EVSIEEKE -
operations and our handling of individual cases over the past 12 months have

proceeded smoothly, with good results having been achieved.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT (continued)
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Operational Review

Review of complaints

In 2013, the FRC received 20 complaints, up from 19 in 2012.

E{FEIR
BHRS

B 2013 FHE 20 RIFF - 82012 F A 19 R

[ iba gt

2013 2012
—E-=F T
Complaints from the public PYEVN A S S 3 1
Complaints from HKEx REBRZFATHIIR 13 4
Complaints from HKICPA KEBESERIAEHIZF 1 12
Complaints from SFC REFBESHIEHK 2 1

Complaints from both SFC and AR EBEG AR
the public b & 1 -
Complaints from HKMA KE S ERIIRH = 1
20 19

In 2013, the FRC handled five complaints which were brought forward from the
previous year. Among the complaints received in 2013, five related to auditing
or reporting irregularities, two related to non-compliance with accounting
requirements, and 13 involved both auditing or reporting irregularities and
non-compliance with accounting requirements. A total of four investigations
were initiated in response to these complaints.

At the end of 2013, 22 complaints were under review.

R20135F  ABEMTERAN L —FEEENIR
o R2013FRBNRFES - ARFPRBARE
BAETR MRPRTELEFREEH 137
RS REAXERTIETRRTER ST RES
H - ARRELRFRAURHELE -

R2013FFE - HA 22 RBFDEFHF -

2013 2012
—E-—=F —EF—=

Under review at beginning of year FMEMPRER 5 1

Pursuable complaints received N IR 20 19

Suspended complaints EEEMMER (1) -

Recommenced complaints BHHBREROESR 3 -
Completed with no follow-up B Iea M &S ERERETH

action BIEZ (1) (4)

Referred to other regulators AT HMEERERER = )

Initiated investigation/enquiry RAFAS/EARER (4) 9)

Under review at end of year FRINAEEMPOEZR 22 5
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Review of modified auditors’ reports

The FRC screened all modified auditors’ reports published by Hong Kong
listed entities during 2013. Of these 168 (2012:138) reports, 100 (2012:75)
contained no apparent auditing irregularities or non-compliance with
accounting requirements. All other modified auditors’ reports were reviewed
by the FRC, and follow-up enquiries made where appropriate.

The FRC changed its review policy at the end of June 2013. Up until then,
cases where the initial review of a modified auditor’s report identified
potential auditing or reporting irregularities, or non-compliance with
accounting requirements, were followed up by subjecting the company’s full
set of financial statements to external reviewers for a comprehensive review
under the FRC’s risk-based financial statements review programme. Only one
set of financial statements warranted a comprehensive review of this kind in
the six months to the end of June 2013.
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KBR2013FREMEHEE LM ERELNESE
REBERZEAHRE - REZELM 16819 (20124 ¢
13810) FERBERZHAREH - 10017 (2012
F 750U ERAENET T ET AT ENSEE
FTHEE HHEERBEMETMIEHMEEREE

RAREMSEE - WA RETRESH -
RBR2013F 6 AEBEHERAER] « L2871 - 2
M EMIERRE B R AZEEN RS 6355 2 6055
BEAVEFTIETARTEREHREEE &
REBEMUBEREEARERBBENBERESE
Bt gl R AN EBHABETEEEN - #%£ 2013
FeARMNER EE MM BHREFERLEE
= -

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F

Under review at beginning of year FHEEF AR 3 1
Required review during the year FAREEMNER 68 63
Completed with no follow-up B MR ZEREUREITE

action OREES (57) (60)
Required review of full set of HEFMR MM B ®RE

financial statements (EES (1) (M
Under review at end of year FRINEEMPOEZR 13 3

From July 2013, however, the review policy was modified. Under the new
policy, if an audit qualification indicates prior period errors that were
not identified in the prior period report, the FRC will now follow up the
matter directly, without having first to send the financial statements to
external reviewers for comprehensive review under the risk-based financial
statements review programme.

RBERN20135F7 AEFIEEER] o IR AER -
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT (continued)
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Risk-based financial statements review programme

The FRC’s risk-based financial statements review programme has been
in place since 2011. For the 2013/2014 review cycle, we revised the
criteria by which we select financial statements for review. As a result, the
programme now selects accountants’ reports of newly listed companies
which significantly underperformed in the first year of listing, financial
statements from companies that frequently change their directors or senior
management, and those of listed companies which engage audit firms that
are small in relation to the complexity of the audit. In addition, the financial
statements of companies that have been subject to intervention by Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEx) may be reviewed, as may those
of long suspended companies.

We have also expanded the criteria to include financial statements with
significant prior period errors, since these suggest that investors relying on
these prior period financial statements may have been misled. In addition,
financial statements selected for review under the programme include those
of companies using overseas auditors approved by the HKEx.

As previously, the workload of reviewing all financial statements of Hong
Kong listed companies electing to adopt Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises (ASBE) has been shared between the FRC, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and the HKEx.

During the year, the FRC completed reviews of 66 sets of financial statements
out of the 75 sets of financial statements selected for the 2012/2013 review
cycle, and did not initiate any investigation/enquiry cases.

For the 2013/2014 cycle, which began in July 2013, the FRC plans to review
75 sets of financial statements representing the financial statements of
approximately 5% of all Hong Kong listed entities. The industry focus for the
2013/2014 cycle has been changed; our focus is now on entities involved
in the mining industry. The programme no longer focuses on an accounting
theme.

To ensure the review process is performed efficiently, the FRC asks external
reviewers to review financial statements and accountants’ reports of newly
listed companies, financial statements prepared under ASBE, and those
containing complex or contentious accounting/auditing issues. The FRC
internally reviews financial statements with prior period adjustments which
may indicate lack of adequate professional scepticism.
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The first batch of financial statements for the 2013/2014 cycle was sent for
external review in the second quarter of 2013. Once reviewed, the FRC staff
will go through the comments received to ensure that all apparent non-
compliance with accounting requirements have been dealt with consistently.
Reviews of these financial statements are expected to be completed by 2014.

RBR 2013 FE —FmIMNIERAB1R322013/2014
RN E ISR o JNPEEA B AR
BRENER  €EAREIER  BEA—HHIR
REMAMNETERSHATHER - AEEHR
2014 F R E L IS RERMNERMITE

2013 2012
—E—=F —T—C4
Under review at beginning of year FUEHPREBHRE 62 56
Initiated based on review of HEMIFRRERE
modified auditors’ reports 12 B R e 5 T e Bl A E] 22 1 1
Initiated based on other ] 2 322 fie
selection criteria =Lk EES 32 74
Completed with no follow-up B 5ok i & T ZRAURETE)
action BB 5 R 3% (24) (41)
Issued letters of advice BHNEEZENE LK (9 (14)
Required follow-up review EREFHNEBRE (20) (14)
Under review at end of year FRANEEMP R B RE 42 62

Investigations

In 2013, the FRC initiated seven investigations and handled eight cases
brought forward from the previous year; and also completed five investigations.
Any auditing irregularities identified in its investigations were referred to the
HKICPA to determine if disciplinary action should be taken. By the end of 2013,
ten investigations were in progress, most of which are expected to be completed
by 2014

HE

ABER2013FRALFTAEREE F—FECER
WNAREZR YEEKTATASER - RfEEH
AEINEMRBATETAEEREBETMAE -
NEEREFERMLERD - HE2013FFK -
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2014 F 52K °

2013 2012

—E-=F —T—-T4F

In progress at beginning of year FHRAETHEZR 8 8
Initiated in the year FABRHAAEMER 7 9
Completed T FERER (5) 9)
In progress at end of year FERNEAEFHOEZE 10 8

BISERRE 2013 £k

13



14

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT (continued)

TR E &

Enquiries
In 2013, the FRC completed two enquiries brought forward from the
previous year.

Once its enquiries were completed, the FRC asked the listed entities involved

B

ARR2013FTHMER L—FECRMANER -

RAEREREHE - ZRKEHE

mEBAIENER
BIRTEEE  MZFLHERTE

RBERW

i}

to remove any identified non-compliance with accounting requirements, and g Hi
to rectify the non-compliance by making appropriate prior year adjustments — #R&R(EHAIEIFE - BETNEREE -
to subsequent financial statements.
At the end of 2013, one enquiry was in progress, which was completed in ~ EZ2013F K —REMNNEETH - TAER
the first quarter of 2014. 2014 FFE—F5EHK °
2013 2012

—E—-=F T
In progress at beginning of year FHEAFHEZE 3 1
Initiated during the year FARRMAEMAEZR - 3
Completed TEAERRER (2) (M
In progress at year end FRANEEMFRIER 1 3
Advice Letters to Listed Entities and their Auditors BT EEREREENERX
One of the FRC’s roles is to offer advice to listed entities and their auditors $%ﬁ¢*lﬁﬁﬁ£ﬁmﬁim B REZEAM S E
on ways of improving the quality of their financial reporting. In some cases  BIFERMEZRHER - MESHTEN TR
where potential non-compliance with accounting requirements does not EE’]$EK§%§“%%#&§E’J%W AR ERA

compromise the presentation of the financial statements, the FRC does not
initiate an investigation or enquiry. Instead, it issues a letter of advice, which
includes findings and suggested improvements or remedial measures for the
listed entities and/or their auditors to consider.

The FRC issued 11 such letters of advice over the past year. In each case, the
letters were the result of the review of complaints and of the companies’
relevant financial statements under the risk-based financial statements
review programme.

Reviewing Financial Statements of Companies using
Eligible Mainland Auditors

For the 2012 financial year, 37 Hong Kong-listed Mainland companies
chose to use eligible Mainland auditors to audit their financial statements.
Their financial statements were included in the financial statements review
programmes of the FRC, the HKEx and the HKICPA. No significant non-
compliance with accounting requirements on the part of these companies
was identified during the review.
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Cooperation among Regulators

The Memorandum of Understanding signed with the Ministry of Finance
(MoF) of the Mainland in 2009 established a framework for investigative
co-operation. We engage in regular dialogue with our Mainland
counterparts. During the year, this involved meeting with the Accounting
Regulatory Department of the MoF to discuss issues of mutual concern.

EERBZENSE

BB AR R 20004 5ok BB B AE 19 R AR
SHRTHENAFER - ARRERNLENE
EREETEEER  BERENRSeH A
B AR RINEE -

in

On 7 June 2013, Mr Mark Dickens (right) met with Ms Yang Min (left), Director-General of the

accounting regulatory department of MoF.

KEBHRAE(R)N2013F6 A7 REMBHEARARGHLZLE () 8@ -

The FRC has continued its programme of holding regular liaison meetings
with other Hong Kong regulators, including the Securities and Futures
Commission (SFC), the HKICPA and the HKEx with whom we have
Memoranda of Understanding. The FRC, the HKICPA and the HKEx
discussed, among other things, the themes for the year, and the annual
target for the number of reviews of financial statements to be carried out.
All three also shared their reviews of the financial statements of the 37 Hong
Kong-listed Mainland companies that opted to use Mainland auditors for the
2012 financial year.
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ional Policy Forum

Mr Mark Dickens spoke at the 7th IFRS Regional Policy Forum on 6 June 2013.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT (continued)
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In November 2013, the FRC, the HKEx and the HKICPA held their third joint
forum. Representatives of the three organizations shared their observations
on the respective financial statements review programmes with attendees
who included listed entities and their auditors. The joint forum is proving a
valuable annual event that is definitely contributing to the enhancement of
the quality of financial reporting in Hong Kong.

Financial Review

The annual contribution to the FRC for the 2013 financial year was HK$18.5
million (2012: HK$17.6 million). This amount comes from our four funding
parties — the Hong Kong Government, the HKEx, the HKICPA and the SFC.
In addition, the Hong Kong Government provides premises at a nominal rent
of HK$1 per annum. The FRC recorded a deficit of HK$1.2 million in 2013
(2012: surplus of HK$2.0 million). Total expenditure for the year amounted
to HK$20.6 million (2012: HK$16.2 million).

Our major items of expenditure during the year were staff costs, at HK$15.7
million (2012: HK$13.9 million); audit oversight research and related
expenses at HK$2.4 million; and legal and professional fees at HK$0.6
million (2013: HK$0.8 million). The increase in staff costs was attributable
to an annual pay adjustment, and the appointment of a deputy CEO to help
manage the FRC’s growing workload, arising both from investigations and
enquiries and our involvement in the current independent audit oversight
reform process.

Talent Management

At the FRC, we realise that talent is one of our most important strategic
resources, and is vital to the ongoing success of the FRC, particularly in light
of the proposed reform. We have undertaken a number of initiatives over the
past year to cultivate our existing talent pool, and attract new talent to the
FRC.

FRC staff continued to attend industry-specific internal workshops during
the year. These events help raise our levels of operational expertise when it
comes to handling cases from a wide range of industries. We also organized
a plain English workshop designed to enhance staff communication
skills, especially with regard to conveying technical information to our
stakeholders. These continuous learning and professional development
programmes have equipped FRC staff with new professional skills and
upgraded the existing skills they need to carry out their duties confidently
and competently.
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Many of our staff members attended local or global conferences during the
year, as a way of keeping abreast of the latest developments in accounting
and auditing practices, as well as changes in regulatory frameworks.

Such career-oriented training and networking opportunities are an important
part of what the FRC offers its staff members. At the same time, however,
we actively encourage staff to develop a viable work-life balance, in line with
our commitment to being a family-friendly employer.

Notes of Appreciation

Finally, I would like to express my appreciation to the Chairman and Council
Members, our Honorary Advisory Panel, and members of the FRRP and
Process Review Panel. Their insights and professional advice has been a great
help and has certainly enhanced the standard of our work across the FRC.
I would also like to thank the Financial Services and Treasury Bureau for
their unflagging support. | would also like to extend my sincerest gratitude
to all our colleagues at the FRC for the hard work and dedication they have
displayed over the year.

The economic environment in Hong Kong and around the world remains
uncertain. It is in such times that the role of an independent regulator such
as the FRC is especially important. We remain committed to serving the best
interests of the public by promoting high quality financial reporting of Hong
Kong listed entities.

We expect there to be changes in the regulatory framework governing
the audit profession in the future. At the FRC we are looking forward to
these changes as aligning us more closely with global practice. Change or
no change, however, the FRC will continue to build on its strengths and
professionalism to discharge its functions effectively and efficiently over the
coming year, in the interests of the investing public.
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FRC MEBERS (Continued)

Chairman
Mr John Poon, JP (appointment effective 3 October 2012; term
expires on 14 December 2014)

Mr Poon is a solicitor and a non-executive director of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority. He was formerly the deputy chairman
of Esprit Holdings Limited until July 2008. Mr Poon served as a lay member
of the council of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA) from December 2005 to December 2011 during which he was
also the chairman of Professional Qualifications Accountability Board (2009-
2011) and the chairman of Governance Review Task Force in 2011. He was a
member of the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform (2003-2009)
and the Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance) (2004-2010).

Members
Mr Roger Best, JP (appointment effective 1 December 2012 on
nomination of the HKICPA; term expires on 30 November 2014)

Mr Best is a certified public accountant. He was a partner of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from 1982 until his retirement on 31 May 2010. He is a fellow
member of both the HKICPA and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales (ICAEW), and was appointed as a member of the IFRS
Advisory Council in January 2013. He was elected as president of the HKICPA
in 2004. He was appointed to the Financial Reporting Review Panel of the
FRC from July 2007 to July 2010 and an Honorary Adviser of the FRC from
August 2010 to November 2012.

Mr Chew Fook Aun (re-appointment effective 1 December 2012;
term expires on 30 November 2015)

Mr Chew is the deputy chairman and executive director of Lai Sun Garment
(International) Limited and Lai Sun Development Company Limited, the
executive director of eSun Holdings Limited, and the chairman and executive
director of Lai Fung Holdings Limited. He has over 25 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and finance in the United Kingdom and Hong Kong.
He was a vice president and a former council member of the HKICPA. He
is a certified public accountant and a fellow member of the ICAEW and of
the HKICPA. Mr Chew is a member of the Corruption Prevention Advisory
Committee of the Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC)
and the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform. He also served
as a member of the Advisory Committee of the Securities and Futures
Commission (SFC) from June 2007 to May 2013.
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Ms Connie Lau, JP (appointment effective 1 December 2012; term
expires on 30 November 2015)

Ms Lau is the former chief executive of the Hong Kong Consumer Council.
She is now the chairperson of the International Advisory Group of Experts on
Consumer Protection of United Nations. She is also a member of the Steering
Committee on Review of the Regulation of Private Healthcare Facilities, the
Consultative Group on Health Protection Scheme of Health and Medical
Development Advisory Committee, the Steering Committee on Strategic
Review on Healthcare Manpower Planning and Professional Development,
the Business Studies Advisory Board of Hong Kong University School of
Professional and Continuing Education and a director of Dispute Resolution
Centre Limited.

Ms Teresa Ma (appointment effective 1 December 2012 on
nomination of the SFC; term expires on 30 November 2014)

Ms Ma is an experienced lawyer and a partner and member of the
International Board of Linklaters. She is currently serving on the Takeovers
and Mergers Panel and the Takeovers Appeal Committee of the SFC. She is
also an accredited mediator of the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution.

Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith (appointment effective 1 December
2012; term expires on 30 November 2015)

Mr Sallnow-Smith is the chairman of the board of The Link Management
Limited. He has over 36 years of experience in the finance and treasury
field in the United Kingdom and Asia, and has extensive knowledge of the
property investment/management industry in Hong Kong. He was chief
executive of Hongkong Land Limited between 2000 and 2007. He is an
independent non-executive director of Wynn Macau, Limited, Unitech
Corporate Parks PLC and Aviva Life Insurance Company Limited (Hong Kong).
He has been actively involved in public service and is chairman of the Hong
Kong Youth Arts Foundation, a member of the Council of the Treasury
Markets Association, and chairman of the General Committee of The British
Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong.

BB ATt ((EEIR 20124 12 A1 Big=
2015411 A30 BfEm)

HLLRBELEBEELZBGREARE - IER

ERBEZRERGHEEEEREHRERER/
iﬁIF waRMERBERBERERTESEZE

CREEERERZAARE S ZEBERE S
/i BEADRINMEXERRBE RS EEE
BERBEXECRL OB ERRERNE

ke RA@Rt LOERARNESER

o ‘U]]D J ]]]

\f

& .
&
EE R
g

\}QF

o

EEWALT(R20124 12 A1 ERBESIRZ
EE - EHZE2014F 11 A30BEW)

BRER/EREM  BEFEERMEHANERA
MEBREREKE - R AREERE TRB LS
HEEGRUBLRZEGNKE - WAREMFA
BRSO R R SRR B

KBRS A ((FEAAR2012F 12 A1 BiERE
F£11 4308 E®)

2015

HIKAEERABEEEBERARNNESTEERE -
MR REREMNNESH R E RSB 36FL
B WEBBSMWWMERE/EBITEREEFNG -
fib 2000 F 22007 FHEIEREEASHEER
AIMATIAREL o B K FRFIBR A F ~ Unitech
Corporate Parks PLC REBRREGE ASRBRER

NAKBNIERITESF - thBBL2BABRE - A
\‘}%%Eiﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ’lif HEMBRASHEEHRK

CRERBANGRBEESTNERE

BISERRE 2013 £k

21




22

FRC MEBERS (Continued)

Hon Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP (appointment effective 1 December
2012; term expires on 30 November 2015)

Mr Sin is a Legislative Councillor representing the geographical constituency
of Hong Kong Island. He also serves as a board director of the West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority and the chairman of its remuneration committee.
He is a board member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, a member of the
Council for Sustainable Development and the Greater Pearl River Delta
Business Council. Mr Sin served as a member of the Operations Review
Committee and Witness Protection Review Board Panel of the ICAC from
2006 to 2012. He served as a member of the Housing Authority from 2001 to
2009 and a board director of the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
from 1999 to 2009.

Mr David Stannard (appointment effective 1 December 2012; term
expires on 30 November 2015)

Mr Stannard is a corporate lawyer based in Hong Kong and global head of
the Corporate Practice Group of Norton Rose. He was an executive director
in charge of the Corporate Finance Division of SFC from January 1999 to
September 2001, a member of the Listing Committees of the Main Board and
the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
from 2003 to 2008 and a member of the Standing Committee on Company
Law Reform from 2003 to 2010.

Mr John E Strickland, GBS, JP (appointment effective 1 December
2012 on nomination of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited (HKEXx); term expires on 30 November 2014)

Mr Strickland is an independent non-executive director of HKEx. He is
currently chairman of Octopus Holdings Limited and the Hong Kong Internet
Registration Corporation, and a director of Esquel Holdings Inc. He has and
continues to be a director or council member or trustee of a range of not-
for-profit organizations. He has served as chairman or member of many
audit committees of private and listed companies. He served as chairman
of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and Hong
Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited, as a director of the Mass
Transit Railway Corporation and the Airport Authority Hong Kong. He
was a member of the Council of the University of Hong Kong, the ICAC’s
Operations Review Committee and the Antiquities Advisory Board.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2013

BMEHE  REFAEE KV (EE/A
201212 A1 B#EZE=2015%F11 A30B/@m)

BERERABREREEEMHRENLESHE o
WARANILEEEREERKERZRTFMZS
CEF o MMETEBIREZRRBKE - B
BREZEESHNEBNAU-ANKBLESEE - 44
L2006 FE 2012 FETRBAEEEE SR HE
NEESRREBFABZEZESZELE - thEHM 2001
FEIVFEEFEZEEEZE - LN199F 2
2009 FRABFBIZBESERAANESTHKE -

WoiEseE ((FHAEE 2012412 A1 HEZE 2015
F£11 A30BEW)

ERSTERABERERNESNEENRAEFBE
- hRRBERKNERAREBBEE - R
19991 AZ 2001 FI AR ESERME T H
1TE%E ' 2003F E£2008F ABERBHMARIFMBRA
AIERMEBIZER ETMZEBEKE » 2003F £ 20104
RARENEEBLZEGKE ©

HEEH - SEFEE - KFAT(R2012F12
B1BEEBRSREEMEGR AR B
BEET - FHE20145 11 A30BER)

MEREERABIMOBUIENTES - tE AN
ERITRARARLRESEBAETMERERAA
#IZEJE * LAK Esquel Holdings INcEVE = - 2 2K
FEFHENES BEINEXBE  UKEFR
AR ETRARMNEFZEGERE - B EEE L
HEZRITERAFTRBEHGEEEARAAN
IE - URBEEBRERAGREERSEERERS
EEMANBEFTERERBEES RUAERE
BETRRENEEGLRERAYHNEZESKE -



Ms Ada Chung, JP (ex-officio) (appointment effective 1 October
2007)

Ms Chung, the Registrar of Companies, is a certified public accountant and
a barrister-at-law. As a representative of the Financial Secretary, Ms Chung
is an ex-officio council member of the HKICPA. She is also a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Before her appointment as the Registrar in August 2007, she was
a Deputy Law Officer of the Department of Justice.

Mr Mark Dickens, JP (ex-officio) (appointment effective 1 April
2013; term expires on 31 March 2016)

Mr Dickens is the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the FRC. He is a lawyer by
training and has over 25 years of experience as a financial regulator in Hong
Kong and Australia. He was the Head of Listing Division of HKEx from March
2009 until his retirement in March 2013, during which he has overseen
significant policy developments. Prior to joining HKEX, he held several senior
positions in the SFC for 14 years, including serving as an executive director
of enforcement from 1997 to 1999. He was also a Member of the FRC from
December 2006 to January 2009 on the nomination of the SFC.

Dr PM Kam, (ex-officio) (appointment effective 1 April 2010; term
expired on 31 March 2013)

Dr Kam was the CEO of the FRC. He is a certified public accountant and was
the group financial controller of Jardine Matheson Limited. He is presently
a member of the Hospital Authority and the University Grants Committee.
Dr Kam was a member of the IFRS Advisory Council of the International
Accounting Standards Board from November 2005 to December 2011. He
was the president of the then Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now
renamed HKICPA) in 1999 and 2000. He is currently an Honorary Adviser of
the FRC.
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Regulators are appointed to act in the public interest; in the case of the FRC,
that public interest involves the promotion of high quality financial reporting
that will reinforce and sustain investor confidence in Hong Kong’s financial
reporting framework. In pursuit of this aim, the FRC exercises its statutory
powers under the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap 588) (FRCO).

The FRC operates within a comprehensive framework based on a set of
core values: integrity, proficiency, independence, impartiality, accountability
and transparency. This framework includes a clearly defined governing
structure, high standards of conduct, reliable internal control procedures and
appropriate checks and balances.

As an organization that insists on and promotes the highest standards of
financial reporting, it is important that the FRC is seen to be at the forefront
of corporate governance itself. To ensure this is the case, it has adopted the
best practices issued by the International Federation of Accountants, drafted
specifically to meet governance requirements within the public sector.

Organization Structure
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

v BIRER =

The Council

The FRC is governed by its Members, who operate as a Council. As at 31
December 2013, there were 11 Members on the Council, most of whom,
including the Chairman, are non-accounting professionals as required by
the FRCO. Nine are appointed by the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (HKSAR). Of this nine, three are nominated
by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEx), the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and the Securities and
Futures Commission (SFC) respectively. The Registrar of Companies or her
representative and the FRC’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) are ex-officio
members. The fact that most members are not accounting and auditing
professionals ensures the Council’s independence in carrying out its
functions.

The Government appoints the CEO of the FRC, based on the Council’s
recommendation. The CEO and his staff manage the operations of the FRC;
they report back to Council Members in accordance with the provisions of
the procedural manual. On their part, Council Members give directives to
the CEO and FRC staff, and ensure the organization’s statutory functions are
being performed effectively.

Members of the Council are legally bound to declare any interest they
may have in a case. Council Members present during deliberations or
decision-making by the HKEx, the HKICPA or the SFC with respect to the
referral of cases to the FRC, are considered as having an interest in that case.
Council Members having such an interest may not (a) be present during any
deliberation by the Council, (b) take part in any decision of the Council, or (c)
be given any documents related to the case, in accordance with the FRCO.

Council Meetings

The Council meets once every two months and holds additional meetings
as and when necessary; it also resolves some matters by circulation. The
financial statements of the Council and progress reports on cases are also
submitted to the Council for review at meetings. In 2013, the Council
held seven meetings, all of which were conducted in accordance with the
provisions of the FRCO.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2013
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Attendance at meetings by individual Council Members in 2013 was as

follows:

MIEEHRBRER

2013FMEHLFEEMAT ¢

Meetings attended/held

BRLE/BITRE
Mr John Poon, JP (Chairman) EERAAKFELT (FE) 7/7
Mr Roger Best, JP B A T 4+ 6/7
Mr Chew Fook Aun AtezEE 5/7
Ms Connie Lau, JP 2B A ot 717
Ms Teresa Ma SRRzt 717
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith ERIKBR A 7/7
Hon Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP BifEmE  BREMES  KFat 6/7
Mr David Stannard AR 5/7
Mr John E Strickland, GBS, JP MEfER  SEFEE  AF#tL 5/7
Ms Ada Chung, JP or her representative (ex-officio) #EB¥R AFMtHERR(EHAKE) 717
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (ex-officio)! IEBR P+ (EAKE)" 5/5
Dr PM Kam (ex-officio)? HEXEL (FAKE)? 2/2

T Appointed as CEO with effect from 1 April 2013.
2 Retired as CEO with effect from 1 April 2013.

The average attendance rate at meetings was 90%.

Council Committees

The Council has five committees, the responsibilities of which are described

TR 2013F 4.8 1 HEZERTTKARE
2 R20134F 47 1 HEERIK -

SHETFHEEEAEI0% -

BHRERRBTEZES

BEBBTRAMEES  BEHMULRERE

below. These committees meet as necessary, on a periodic basis. Each RETEE - SZERREBEBESREEE -
committee operates according to its own terms of reference.

Terms of reference

o To formulate corporate communications policies and strategies to  ®

increase publicity on the work of the FRC.

° To oversee the implementation of corporate communications e
strategies approved by the Council, and to utilize appropriate

i) TE A4 5 AL R K SR g
T

EEB AR 8 kR W E MR A AT
AREBRERRERERENMINFER %
REEFER 7Y EFEARSE

communications tools to reach the media and external parties, such 3
as press statements, publications, electronic communications, and =
conferences.

o To recommend an annual promotion plan and budget to the Council. J

o To oversee the review and updating of FRC website layouts and e
contents, printed brochures, promotional materials, and other

publications of the FRC.

o To oversee publicity campaigns launched from time to time by the FRC. o

IR E E A

AARKERXFESETE MRS
EBARARNBAEREAR  MMEF -
EEEMREMERT P EB M E R -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

BER &

Summary of work of the CCC in 2013

o Approved the Corporate Communications Plan 2013/2014.

o Reviewed the draft 2012 Annual Report for Council’s approval.

o Reviewed various FRC promotional materials for the 2013 promotion
plan, including advertisements, eNews, leaflets and corporate video.

o Provided advice on the FRC’s annual media reception and the press
briefing on the report on independent audit oversight.

Attendance at CCC meetings in 2013 was as follows:

BIEENZ E S 2013 FHITIFBERL
. B 2013/2014 FEHBEETS -

. EM012FFHRNETR - UEANBEED -
. EHAB013FEBEFENETEER - BE
BE - EFEA - MEF RS o
. RABNEEEEAFNEEBLETES

HENBEEENSREER

HBEEAZESNER2013FNGHLFEXNT :

Meetings attended/held
BRLE /I BTRH

Ms Connie Lau, JP (Chairman) 2B et (FE) 3/3

Ms Ada Chung, JP BERATHLT 3/3

Hon Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP BiEZEE - BRAEE - KF@L 3/3

Mr Mark Dickens, JP (ex-officio) (from 1 April 2013) kEB A Fa+ (AL E)(H2013F4 A1 HiR) 11

Dr PM Kam (ex-officio) (until 31 March 2013) HEE L (EALE)(EE2013F3 A31HALL) 2/2

Average attendance rate ST 100%

Finance Committee (FC) HEZESE

Terms of reference BiiEssE

. To review the FRC’s treasury, internal control, and financial and risk %lﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ’]fﬁ‘% A BB Il DA Bz B 75 £ R B
management policies and strategies. EIRR KR

o To approve tenders for procurement with an estimated value
exceeding HK$250,000 (other than legal services relating to vetting of
investigation or enquiry reports).

o To advise Council on the short, medium and long-term financial
implications of the FRC’s strategic plans.

o To review and make recommendations to the Council on the FRC’s
annual budget.

o To review the FRC’s draft annual financial statements before
submission to the Council.

o To provide advice on the future funding model of the FRC once the
independent audit oversight reform proposal is finalized.

Summary of work of the FC in 2013

o Reviewed the draft financial statements for the 2012 financial year.

o Considered the projected expenditure of the FRC for the years 2014
and 2015, the FRC’s 2013 financial forecast, and the FRC’s 2014
budget.

o Reviewed the revised procurement manual.

o Considered estimates of the FRC’s expenditure over the five years from
2014 to 2019.

28 Financial Reporting Council  Annual Report 2013
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Attendance at FC meetings in 2013 was as follows:

MEEESRER 2013 FNEZH

FEMT

Meetings attended/held

BEHE/BTREY
Mr Chew Fook Aun (Chairman) BR& S (£E) 3/3
Ms Ada Chung, JP EREIC A Tt 3/3
Ms Teresa Ma ot e 3/3
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (ex-officio) (from 1 April 2013) &) ARFaL (=46 5)(F2013F4 7 1 HiR) 2/2
Dr PM Kam (ex-officio) (until 31 March 2013) HEXEL (EAKE)(EE2013F3 A31HALL) 11
Average attendance rate S8 S 100%
Independent Audit Oversight Reform Committee (IAORC) BUHFIEERREESE
Terms of reference BrE

To provide advice to the FRC and the Secretariat on matters related to
the reform of auditor oversight systems in Hong Kong (the “Reform”),
including but not limited to registration, inspection, investigation and
sanction of auditors.

To oversee the work of the staff in relation to the Reform, including but
not limited to the assumption of statutory powers for the inspection
of listed company auditors and the transition arrangements relating
to audit inspection and related legislative amendments, and to ensure
that the activities undertaken by the staff are in accordance with the
directives of the FRC and the agreed timeline.

To receive and consider regular progress reports from the staff on the
progress of the Reform.

To undertake specific tasks related to the Reform as required by the
FRC.

Summary of work of the IAORC in 2013

Recommended the commissioning of, and reviewed the report on,
independent audit oversight.

Considered the discussion papers relating to and the draft proposed
framework for the audit regulatory reform of Hong Kong.

Discussed issues relating to the audit regulatory reform of Hong Kong.

Attendance at IAORC meetings in 2013 was as follows:
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s BRUREBETIHNFEERINTENER
HE
. BB ERANITENEGENEETE -

BUFNEENELZEE 2013 FH TIEHRL
. RERETEUSAEERERHEALS
Bz -
. EZRAMEBEEERER X RS
PREHNELR o
. N ARAEEEAEENENEE -
BUBRNEEREZEEN 2013 FHIFH LR
T~
Meetings attended/held

EEHE/BTRE
Mr John Poon, JP (Chairman) BEAARF L (FE) 3/3
Mr Roger Best, JP B R A T4+ 2/3
Mr Chew Fook Aun BARRRE 2/3
Hon Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP BEEE  REAEE  KFat 3/3
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith BRIKRRSCAE 3/3
Mr David Stannard PERESTE 3/3
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (ex-officio) (from 1 April 2013) kEB A F4+ (Z 44 E)(H2013F4 A1 HiR) 3/3
Dr PM Kam (ex-officio) (until 31 March 2013) HEE L (EALE)(EE2013F3 A31HALL) 0/0
Average attendance rate ST T 90%
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
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Operations Oversight Committee (OOC)
Terms of reference

To formulate policies, strategies, guidelines and procedures for the
operation of the FRC.

To provide advice to the FRC and its operational staff on technical or
business issues.

To consider the progress of enquiries, investigations, complaints and
reviews currently dealt with by the staff.

To consider enquiry reports approved by the FRRC before submission to
the FRC.

To consider investigation reports approved by the Audit Investigation
Board (AIB) before submission to the FRC.

To consider the recommendations in the complaint/review assessment

reports before submission to the FRC, and to endorse those complaint/

review assessment reports requiring no follow-up action.

To consider the follow-up actions in relation to the review of modified
auditors’ reports.

To consider and approve the recommendations in the risk-based review
handling reports in relation to financial statements selected for review
under the risk-based financial statements review programme.

Summary of work of the OOC in 2013

Considered the progress of enquiries, investigations, complaints,
reviews, and also the progress of the risk-based financial statements
review programmes and the review of modified auditors’ reports.
Considered the work plan for the risk-based financial statement review
programme 2013-14.

Considered five complaint assessment reports and nine review
assessment reports.

Considered and approved 52 recommendations in the risk-based
review handling reports.

Considered and approved 62 recommendations arising from the
review of modified auditors’ reports.

Considered and approved five investigation reports and two enquiry
reports.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2013
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Attendance at OOC meetings in 2013 was as follows:

BEEERZE SN 2013FNEH

FEHGATS

Meetings attended/held

BRHUE/BTRH
Mr Roger Best, JP (Chairman) HOMBA T4t (F/E) 6/6
Mr Jamie Allen (from 1 October 2013) RH#EBFEE (2013610 A1 8#) 11
Mr Chew Fook Aun BRRE 5/6
Mr Vincent Duhamel (from 1 August 2013) MEN A (20134881 HiE) 12
Ms Teresa Ma BBt 4/6
Mr John E Strickland, GBS, JP MEfER REAEE - AT 6/6
Mr Stephen Taylor (from 1 August 2013) Stephen Taylor 54 (520138 A1 HAE) 2/2
Mr Paul Winkelmann (from 1 August 2013) Paul Winkelmann 54 (8201348 A 1 H#E) 2/2
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (ex-officio) (from 1 April 2013) &) B ARF4 L (24 S5)(FH2013F4 71 HiR) 4/4
Dr PM Kam (ex-officio) (until 31 March 2013) HEEL (EAKXE)(EE2013F3 A31BALL) 2/2
Average attendance rate T E = 90%
Remuneration Committee (RC) FEHESE
Terms of reference BhpdnE

To make recommendations to the Council on staffing, remuneration and
employment policies and strategies including salary structure, terms and
conditions of employment, and staff fringe benefits.

To make recommendations to the Council on the annual pay adjustment
and the amount of variable compensation payable to individual staff
members.

To make recommendations to the Council on the amount of variable
compensation payable to the CEO.

To review the remuneration policy to ensure that it is consistent with
applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Summary of work of the RC in 2013

Considered the year-end performance based variable pay of 2012 and
the salary revision of 2013.

Considered the terms and conditions of employment for the new
Deputy CEO.

Reviewed staff fringe benefits.

Attendance at RC meetings in 2013 was as follows:
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Meetings attended/held

ERHE/BITRE
Mr John Poon, JP (Chairman) EERAKFERLT (FFE) 5/5
Ms Connie Lau, JP 2R A - 4 5/5
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith BRIKBRSE A 5/5
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (ex-officio) (from 1 April 2013) & B AF 4+ (ZA6L5)(FH2013F4 1 BiR) 4/4
Dr PM Kam (ex-officio) (until 31 March 2013) HiEXEL (84 E5)(EZ2013F3 A31HALL) 11
Average attendance rate FH R 100%
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Operations

Enquiry — FRRC

In cases where the FRC believes there may be non-compliance in relation to
a listed entity, the Council may appoint a FRRC to conduct an enquiry. The
committee consists of a Panel Convenor as Chairman, and at least four other
members of the Financial Reporting Review Panel (FRRP).

Under the powers vested in it under section 43 of the FRCO, the FRRC may
require relevant persons to produce records and documents and provide
information and explanations so it can conduct an enquiry.

Members of the FRRP are appointed by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR
in consultation with the Council. As at 31 December 2013, the FRRP had
43 members, including six Convenors. They are appointed based on their
experience in accounting, auditing, finance, banking, law, administration,
or management. The list of FRRP members can be found in the section
“Membership of Board and Panels™.

Two of the FRRCs formed in 2012 completed their enquiry cases in 2013.

Investigations — AIB

The Council may direct the AIB to conduct an investigation into possible
auditing or reporting irregularities in relation to listed entities. Under the
powers vested in it under sections 25, 26, 27 and 28 of the FRCO, the AIB
may require relevant persons to produce records and documents, supply
information and provide explanations for the purposes of the investigation.

The CEO is the ex-officio Chairman of the AIB. Other members of the AIB,
who are normally staff members of the FRC, are appointed by the Council.
The list of AIB members can be found in the section “Membership of Board
and Panels”.

Impartiality and Transparency

Accountability and audit
The strict audit process adopted by the FRC begins with the preparation of

the annual budget, which must be endorsed by the Council. The Secretary
for Financial Services and the Treasury then reviews and approves the FRC’s
annual estimation of income and expenditure. The financial statements are
subject to an official audit by the Government’s Director of Audit; annual
reports are submitted to the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury
and tabled at the Legislative Council. The Chairman and the CEO attend the
Legislative Council Panel on Financial Affairs and present a progress report
each year.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2013
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The FRC also has its work scrutinized by a Process Review Panel (PRP), the aim
of which is to ensure that individual cases have been dealt with consistently,
and that all actions and decisions taken are in line with internal procedures
and guidelines. The PRP issues an annual report containing the conclusions of
its review and suggestions for improvements. Appointments to the PRP are
approved by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR.

Internal controls

The FRC maintains an effective internal control system that has a clear
organizational structure, well-defined levels of authority, and proper
segregation of duties. The FRC assigns a director to take charge of each case
from the moment enquiries commence; at least one other person at director
level or above must review the case before any decision or action is taken.

The FRC regularly monitors all its policies and guidelines relating to personnel
administration, procurement, authorization of transactions, and the safeguarding
of its assets.

Code of conduct

The FRC fosters a culture and set of values that underpin the effectiveness of
its corporate governance. All staff members are expected to adhere strictly
to our code of conduct when carrying out any role on behalf of the FRC. Our
code of conduct specifies standards to be followed in areas that may involve
conflicts of interest, confidentiality of information, personal investments and
data protection. This includes the need for staff members to make regular
declarations of their own and their spouse’s investments, and to notify any
changes in their holdings.

FRC’s code of conduct is reviewed and updated on a regular basis to ensure
that it remains consistent with the best practices currently being applied
across the areas in which the FRC operates.

Keeping the public informed

Annual reports and bi-annual eNews are issued to keep stakeholders
informed about the FRC’s operations and new developments. Operations
statistics and press releases about completed cases are regularly posted on
the FRC website (www.frc.org.hk).

A new section named “FRC Decisions”, containing summaries of cases not
requiring investigations or enquiries, has recently been created on the FRC
website. Its aim is to enhance understanding of best practices in applying
accounting and auditing standards. Also available on the website is the FRC’s
report on independent audit oversight, published in October 2013.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

HitEERES

Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Audit Report
To the Financial Reporting Council

I have audited the financial statements of the Financial Reporting Council set
out on pages 36 to 51, which comprise the statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2013, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Financial Reporting Council’s Responsibility for
the Financial Statements

The Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with section 18(2)
of the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap 588) and International
Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as the Financial
Reporting Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with section 19(1) of the
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing
standards. Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2013
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the Financial Reporting Council, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Financial Reporting Council as at 31 December 2013, and of
its results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with section 18(2) of the Financial Reporting Council
Ordinance.

LAU Sun-wo
Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

Audit Commission

26th Floor, Immigration Tower
7 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

13 March 2014
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

mEWAR
BE-_T—=F+-A=+—HILFE
(EEABTHIR)

Note 2013 2012
MisE —E—=F —T——F
Income ON
Annual contribution FFRAES 4 18,522,000 17,640,000
Interest income FLBWA 5 463,330 526,512
Recovery of costs of investigation FAE KA ULE] 400,695 51,700
19,386,025 18,218,212
Expenditure X
Staff costs BT 6 (15,713,286) (13,885,133)
Audit oversight research EITEEHR
and related expenses MBS (2,366,691) —
Legal and professional fees FERNEEBR (643,348) (844,560)
Corporate communications expenses — #/@& & H 7 (1,010,608) (825,940)
Depreciation charge WEXH 10 (128,214) (85,067)
Other operating expenses HEMEEs 8 (757,008) (598,058)
(20,619,155) (16,238,758)
(Deficit)/surplus and total
comprehensive income F(EH), Btk
for the year REBZEWRA (1,233,130) 1,979,454

The notes on pages 40 to 51 form part of these financial statements.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2013
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION B ESARIR 2R

As at 31 December 2013 R_ZT—=F+=-A=+—H
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (@FAETIIR)
Note 2013 2012
FiaE —E—=F —F—=

Non-current assets FREEE
Office equipment and furniture WMAEBERRE 10 597,461 231,199
Current assets REEE
Receivables and prepayments JE U BR R R FE A 308 11 765,443 420,226
Time deposits with original REIBRBB=(EAMN

maturities over three months TEHTF R 12 25,000,000 27,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEY 13 9,491,614 9,942,970
Total current assets RBEELE 35,257,057 37,363,196
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable and accruals ENERR R BT & A (1,598,883) (2,105,630)
Net current assets nBpEE®¥&E 000 33,658,174 35,257,566
Net assets EEFE 34,255,635 35,488,765
Funds =12
General fund —RE2 14 14,255,635 15,488,765
Reserve fund HiEe 14 20,000,000 20,000,000
Total funds wEe 34,255,635 35,488,765

Approved and authorized for issue by the Financial Reporting Council on ~ RZ=Z—MF = A+ = A B IFERBAE LI #E
13 March 2014 Tz

John Poon, JP BHEMAAFHL Mark Dickens, JP WEBAF#+
Chairman % /& Chief Executive Officer 7TIEAZZt
The notes on pages 40 to 51 form part of these financial statements. FA40BES1 BT ART BRI —FH -
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

e BIEERE &

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS ELEEK
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE-Z—=F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (@FAETIIR)
General fund Reserve fund Total funds
—-RES RES HnES
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——%—HF—H 13,509,311 20,000,000 33,509,311

Surplus and total comprehensive

income for 2012 “T-FRBRNEESBA 1,979,454 — 1,979,454
At 31 December 2012 WZE——%+-A=+—H 15,488,765 20,000,000 35,488,765
At 1 January 2013 RZZE—=%—H—H 15,488,765 20,000,000 35,488,765

Deficit and total comprehensive

income for 2013 ZE-=FBARBEE A (1,233,130) — (1,233,130)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZB—=5+-"HA=+—H 14,255,635 20,000,000 34,255,635
The notes on pages 40 to 51 form part of these financial statements. FA40BES1 BT ART BRI —FH -
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Bengx

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE-Z—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (@FAETIIR)
Note 2013 2012
B —E-=F —T——F

Cash flows from operating activities & FBHELNREHRE

(Deficit)/surplus for the year FR (B, B (1,233,130) 1,979,454
Adjustments for: ABIEA -

Depreciation charge FrESH 128,214 85,067

Interest income B A (463,330) (526,512)

(1,568,246) 1,538,009

Changes in working capital: EEESEE

Increase in receivables and prepayments FEM AR FX & FB A SR E N (322,826) (76,145)

(Decrease)/increase in accounts FEfTRR TR % FERT B

payable and accruals G A,/ 10 (715,854) 273,841

Net cash (outflow)/inflow RETHEENRE

from operating activities (), RAFE (2,606,926) 1,735,705

Cash flows from investing activities REFBHELNRESHE

Payment for the purchase of office BERLERER

equipment and furniture REFIE (285,369) (158,762)
Interest received [RE RSN 440,939 631,646
Decrease in time deposits with original [REIEH BB =EHH

maturities over three months EBFETOR D 2,000,000 3,000,000

Net cash inflow from investing RETEBELHNRS
activities MAFEE 2,155,570 3,472,884

Net (decrease)/increase in cash HERREEEY
and cash equivalents (R2) /g nE58 (451,356) 5,208,589

Cash and cash equivalents at R—B—HBZHEER
1 January BeZEY 9,942,970 4,734,381

Cash and cash equivalents at R+=ZB=+t—HZHER
31 December RE%EY 13 9,491,614 9,942,970

The notes on pages 40 to 51 form part of these financial statements. FA40BES1 BT ART BRI —FH -
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

w BEHE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2013
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

(b)

General Information

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) was established in Hong Kong
under the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap 588) (FRC
Ordinance). Its office address is 29th Floor, High Block, Queensway
Government Offices, 66 Queensway, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

As set out in the FRC Ordinance, the FRC is empowered to conduct
investigations concerning auditing and reporting irregularities, and to
make enquiries into non-compliance with accounting requirements.

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical

cost convention and are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
functional currency of the FRC.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by the FRC in the application of IFRSs that have

significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 16.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2013
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EEFHR @)
(Z) fRELEE )

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3.
(b) Basis of preparation (continued)

(@

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the FRC
is set out below.

Office equipment and furniture

Office equipment and furniture are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, except that items costing less
than $5,000 are expensed when incurred. The cost of an item of office
equipment and furniture comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of office equipment and furniture over its estimated
useful life after considering its estimated residual value. The respective
useful lives are as follows:

(W) o

FHERBEANEIES T ERMERT M
o

EREREA
MRNERMERRBRAABRITE FORE
BRI HERAERETTHIER BIRE
ERE - MAEREREEIBE KA
BREBEERRSEEER ST E
HiERImEm o UETERMLFMMET
BAEMBERASRBRA -

FEDRESMRAEREREREER 2 @3
AEASMILE A RER  LEREE
SHEPA  ZIRB MAEMTAMT

Computers 3 years B =
Other office equipment 7 years Hib i AERAE +F
Office furniture and fixtures 10 years MAEERARKE T

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at the end of each reporting
period.

An item of office equipment and furniture is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its

BE AERSHRTETEEIREER
SHERETIR - RMIEREE AR -

MAEREBRERABEREE LA BBE
A 5% & BE T BE R AR R R A B 25 By 4% L T

DHP

use. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition is determined R RILERZEEEENEAFFHIER
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the (RERBERBEEMS ﬂﬁ@%ﬁ(ﬁﬂﬁ)&ﬁﬁﬁ
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognized in surplus or CRENEHEET)  RZEERLERHHE

deficit in the period in which the asset is derecognized.

At the end of each reporting period, the FRC assesses whether there is
any indication that an item of office equipment and furniture may be
impaired or a previously recognized impairment loss no longer exists or
may have decreased. When there is an indication of impairment, the
recoverable amount of an item of office equipment and furniture is
estimated, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. An impairment loss is recognized in surplus or deficit,
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its recoverable amount.
When a previously recognized impairment loss subsequently reverses,

FTAZBRTREAL o

REERERER  MBERBDITEES
REMPRETPAEZEREEER HR
/WTE BT HRNBER BTBER
B c REBRBERGFTHRIERE
&1%?1\15\5 WA E e - Bl AR BERE
EERHEFAEE L HANESE - BEEN
FHeEaNEANE e  REBRRA
RSk B Al R FERR o O 12 5 [T 5 A M ER BV R
BEEAR  EENRESBESASELEBE]

the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate GBS T AIERZEERB
of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying AHRSERRREBEAEENREE -

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior periods. Reversals of impairment losses are recognized in surplus
or deficit.

B OURER KT ABRBRIEA -
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(d)

(e)

(f)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

e BIEERE &

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the statement
of financial position when the FRC becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of an instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Financial assets of the FRC principally include accounts receivable,
interest receivable, time deposits and other bank balances. They are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows. The contractual terms of financial assets
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Subsequent
to initial recognition, they are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses. An
impairment loss is recognized when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. Any impairment loss is recognized in surplus or deficit.

Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in surplus
or deficit, to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not
exceed its amortized cost that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized.

A financial asset is derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset have expired or the FRC has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include accounts payable and are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method subsequent to initial
recognition.

A financial liability is derecognized when the relevant obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2013
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(9)

(h)

(i)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits with banks
and other short-term highly liquid investments with maturity within
three months when placed or acquired, that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable.

Unconditional and non-refundable contributions are recognized as
income when they become receivable.

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Recovery of costs of investigation is recognized when the right to
receive is established.

Employee benefits
Salaries and paid annual leave are accrued in the period in which the
employees rendered the associated services.

Bonus payments are recognized when the FRC has a present legal
or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past
events and a reliable estimate can be made.

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) scheme are
recognized as an expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the FRC in an independently
administered fund. The employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF scheme, except for the
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the FRC when
the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting
fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF scheme.

3.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

e BIEERE &

Annual Contribution

The Companies Registry Trading Fund (CRTF), the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), the Securities and Futures
Commission (SFC) and the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(HKEX) signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) regarding the
funding arrangement of the FRC. Each party agreed to contribute an
annual amount of $4.6 million to the FRC in 2013 (2012: $4.4 million)
for the recurring expenses. To cater for inflation adjustments and to
provide greater certainty to the FRC to facilitate its development and
future work plan, the annual contribution for 2014 shall be increased
by a fixed percentage of 5% per annum.

The office premises of the FRC are provided by the CRTF at a nominal
rent of $1 per annum. All the related utility and sewage charges,
outgoings, costs and expenses incurred in repairing, maintaining and
managing the office premises are borne by the CRTF.

Interest Income
Interest income was earned from time deposits and other bank

BERAES

NERAMEEEES  FESHMLE &
FEHEEBERZE S (BES) REER
S REERERAT (BT BBl H 75 I
BEMESRFFBGHRETE  SHBERE
R-ZZ-=ZFRFBEFRRALNBNTE
TFEEES(ZE—-F: mWamE+ET)
NEMEENEEEXH - RINEBREER
A 75 B8 3R B T AB 4R B R AN HEFT AR 2R B9 AR AT
Z SREARER-_T—NEF  REFH
DZABEERIELFIENEQRANES

PERBDZHAETHARZMELEES
Rt 8F5gRWR—xRAE - FIERAE
B NSTKER  HABAE - B RER
EEPNEMR AR B H A A RS
EEG A o

FE WA

S AR B TE HITF 5 S LA SRTT A5 8% ©

balances.
Staff Costs BT
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E-CF
Salaries, bonuses and gratuities il - fEARE S 14,268,501 12,439,322
Staff recruitment expenses BEETX 327,474 461,428
MPF contributions EHIMEATES HR 581,039 457,757
Medical and life insurance BEERASRE 373,637 303,037
Staff training and development 8 T3 MitaE% R 84,392 131,397
Others Hh 78,243 92,192
15,713,286 13,885,133
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Staff Costs (continued)

Except for the Chief Executive Officer, Council members are not BRITEAEESN - MISERBKE WIS o
remunerated. The above staff costs included the emoluments of the LA EETHAEBIE TMMITBAEINE

Chief Executive Officer as stated below:

6. BT (&)

2013 2012
—E-=f —E——F
Salaries and MPF Medical
bonuses contributions insurance Total Total
BHEMARS
R RAEAL i3 BERR wE B
Mark Dickens' EIEN 2,159,194 11,250 19,334 2,189,778 -
PM Kam? Higx? 793,720 5,000 6,259 804,979 3,619,643
2,952,914 16,250 25,593 2,994,757 3,619,643

" Appointed with effect from 1 April 2013
2 Retired on 31 March 2013

Corporate Communications Expenses

" ROB-ZFM R AEEF
? R-FE—=F=ZA=1—HEK

7. HEERH

2013 2012

—E—=F —T——F

Publications l iRl 294,276 122,432
Promotion and public education #ENAEHE 626,903 636,914
Others HAth 89,429 66,594
1,010,608 825,940
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

e BIEERE &

Other Operating Expenses 8. Hfh&EEXZ W
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_4F
Conferences and duty visits EERLREIRER 143,455 240,165
Office equipment and
furniture expensed WAEHBEREEAEZ 91,515 25,707
Professional liability insurance ~ HEE TR 25,150 25,123
Others =i 496,888 307,063
757,008 598,058
In accordance with section 19 of the FRC Ordinance, the Audit RE(HBERBDENIE 19K AR
Commission of the Government of the Hong Kong Special THERNFEAS ZEZVRERBNTER
Administrative Region audits the financial statements of the FRC. The X o BHEBWES N IEREENEHE -
Commission does not charge for this service.
Taxation 9. FiE

Pursuant to section 16 of the FRC Ordinance, the FRC is exempt from
taxation under the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap 112).

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2013

RIBCHTBSE IR B IGGI)E 1615 - MFERRB
R mEARBRBED) (F1128) 5
i e



10. Office Equipment and Furniture

10. WRERBRIKRA

Office
Other furniture
office and
Computers equipment fixtures Total
HtAZ WAZRA
B R REE B
Cost BA
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F—F—H 436,844 89,591 74,144 600,579
Additions BA 103,462 55,300 — 158,762
Disposals BRE (70,260) — — (70,260)
At 31 December 2012 R-Z——&+-RA=1+—H 470,046 144,891 74,144 689,081
At 1 January 2013 R-Z—=F—H—H 470,046 144,891 74,144 689,081
Additions BA 74,476 — 420,000 494,476
Disposals BRE (31,850) — — (31,850)
At 31 December 2013 R=2-=f+ZA=t-B 512672 144891 494,144 1,151,707
Accumulated
depreciation RiHE
At 1 January 2012 R-—ZE——F—F—H (363,385) (58,661) (21,029) (443,075)
Charge for the year FERZH (57,612) (20,040) (7,415) (85,067)
Written back on disposals BERER 70,260 — — 70,260
At 31 December 2012 R-Z——&+-fA=1+—H (350,737) (78,701) (28,444) (457,882)
At 1 January 2013 R-Z—=F—HF—H (350,737) (78,701) (28,444) (457,882)
Charge for the year FERZH (68,601) (20,699) (38,914) (128,214)
Written back on disposals BERER 31,850 — — 31,850
At 31 December 2013 R=%-=%+=f=t-8 (387,488) | (99.400) | (67.358) (554,246)
Net book value REEE
At 31 December 2013 R=B-ZF+=p=+-H 125,184 45,491 426,786 597,461
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=1+—H 119,309 66,190 45,700 231,199
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

e BIEERE &

11. Receivables and Prepayments 1. BWERR R FE 1B
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—CF
Accounts receivable FEUER X 309,115 —
Prepayments RN HIE

- Medical and life insurance —BRERASRR 201,795 168,560
— Professional liability insurance —HEEERR 13,589 13,589
— Staff benefits — BT 27,766 23,010
- Others —Ef 42,165 66,445
Interest receivable JEM RIS 171,013 148,622
765,443 420,226

The accounts receivable mainly represented the recoverable costs of JEWAR R E BB AE M A UREIAA -

investigations.

12. Time Deposits with Original Maturities over 12. RZ|EIABB =18 L W EHF

Three Months =
Time deposits with original maturities over three months represented REBEBB=@EANERFRIENEAR
six-month and one-year term deposits which carried fixed interest —FHR2EHTFR  REEFFEH.14
ranging from 1.14% to 1.47% (2012: 1.26% to 1.45%) per annum. EEV14ATEBE(ZE—ZF:126E%
The balances outstanding at 31 December 2013 and 2012 had 145E) - RZTE—=FR_FT——F+=A
maturities less than 12 months from the end of the reporting period. =+ — BRSNS BRI 1 218 A A AR -
13. Cash and Cash Equivalents 13. RERBFEZEY
2013 2012
—EB—=F —EF——F
Cash on hand FERE 3,363 2,400
Current accounts X EERER 216,185 140,682
Savings account REFR 272,066 399,888
Time deposits with original [REIEBAH B ={ER
maturities within three months  EHF 9,000,000 9,400,000
9,491,614 9,942,970
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14.

15.

Funds
General fund represents the operating surplus of the FRC’s recurrent

funding.

Reserve fund represents the non-recurrent contributions received from
the CRTF, the HKICPA, the SFC and the HKEx at the establishment of
the FRC according to the MoU. Each party contributed a lump-sum
amount of $5 million which is not refundable. The reserve fund is to be
deployed to meet any inadequacies of the recurrent funding and other
exigencies of circumstances.

Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category are as

14. %
—RESNIENKERREEEESHNEE

FESEAREMESERES BEGH
Ny BEFREIMBERBETERL
HHERBEMRANFELELES - B
BRA-ZETAHE REDBEEINE
T RETINEEEEZTRELEMBES
BRTEA -

15. /T H
SESBTAMERESEMT

follows:
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
Financial assets at REBERRATTEN
amortized cost ERMEE
Accounts receivable FEURER K 309,115 —
Interest receivable FEUFIE 171,013 148,622
Time deposits with original REIBABB=(EAMN
maturities over three months  FEIFH 25,000,000 27,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEY 9,491,614 9,942,970
34,971,742 37,091,592
Financial liabilities at REBSHRATTEN
amortized cost EA =N
Accounts payable and accruals  FEfSBR XX FERTE A 1,598,883 2,105,630

The carrying amounts of the FRC’s financial assets and financial
liabilities approximate to their fair values as at 31 December 2012 and
2013.

R_E——Fp - ET—=F+-_A=+—
H UBERRHNEREERSHRABBENE
HSBENEAA(EE -
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16
(a)

(b)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

e BIEERE &

. Financial Risks

Credit risk
The FRC’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts receivable,
time deposits and other bank balances.

The accounts receivable are assessed for recoverability on an individual
basis and provisions are made when considered necessary. These
balances are less than three months past due but not impaired. The
recovery of the investigation costs is closely monitored by the Council
and there was no default on payment according to past experience.
The FRC does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

The Council approved an investment policy which, subject to other
limits, only allows the FRC to place deposits with licensed banks in
Hong Kong having regard to the credit rating. The policy also limits the
amount placed with each bank and the maximum duration the deposit
is placed in order to manage its credit risk.

The portfolio of deposits was managed and monitored to ensure it
met the investment policy with bi-monthly reports submitted to the
Coundil. As a result, the FRC was not exposed to significant credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk was represented by the carrying
amount of the financial assets as set out in the statement of financial
position.

Liquidity risk

The FRC has a strong cash position and therefore has a very low level
of liquidity risk. The FRC maintains sufficient levels of cash and cash
equivalents and manages its working capital by carefully reviewing
forecasts on a regular basis. All financial liabilities were due to be
repaid within three months (2012: three months) from the end of the
reporting period.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2013
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16. Financial Risks (continued)

(o)

Market risk

Currency risk

The FRC received its funding and settled its expenses in Hong Kong
dollars. Its financial assets and financial liabilities were all denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. Hence, the FRC was not exposed to any currency
risk.

Interest rate risk

The FRC’s interest bearing assets mainly comprised funds placed in
time deposits with fixed interest rate which are measured at amortized
cost in the financial statements. The FRC was subject to the risk that
the fair value of these time deposits would fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. In order to manage this risk, the FRC
adopted a policy to monitor interest rate risk on a continuous basis.

16. £ RLEE (@)

() HiSEE

B
MEKERBESWARTHE AB T MAT
EeREENSRMEBEHUNEITAEN -
I B T P 3R B I S R R & R B o

FIEmE

MR B ERBH B RS EEREENED
FEHIE AR T E OB TS TR PO LA B BR K AR T
B MUBESRRAEEMERIAEERE
MmN EEHTMEBOER - RERGHAE
B - BT T 3R 5 BR BN DA 5 4 ot B 2 R SR R B
FIEER °
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

Key Operations Statistics

TEEFHE

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Pursuable complaints received
BT IRE IR 13 9 7 19 20
Modified auditors’ reports screened
BB ERRE E R ZEemEs 129 142 131 138 168
Financial statements selected for review
EEERMNOIBEREK - - 70 75 75
Investigations completed
TR ATHER 1 1 5 9 5
Enquiries completed
FTERE AR 3 1 2 1 2
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b

Complaints

Stock markets on which companies/securities involved
in pursuable complaints are listed
BRARENRF AR/ EHENE ETRRET S

19 20

100%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

B GEM Board
Bl AR

B Main Board
FiR

Nature of complaints
R ME

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

B Both auditing and/or reporting irregularities
and non-compliance with accounting
requirements
RIE S RE R/ HERTETRRTERE
BIHREEHE

[ | No\n-/comgliance witjl accounting requirements
NEREAREFE

B Auditing and/or reporting irregularities

Eit R/ AERTETR

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2013

OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

g
j:Xn
Source of pursuable complaints

] BR A B4R AR SRR

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Members of the public

NI N

Anonymous

EEALT

Regulators

EE#IE

Both regulators and members of the public

FIRRAEERBRARAL

Size of accounting firms involved in complaints

R R EETENT R R

19 20

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

M Joint accounLin firms qf different sizes

LA —TE R R R B & 5T RN T
B Small-size accounting firms

(with ﬁye or less partners/directors)

NS HEIIT(BRABRUTHERA I EE)
@ Medium-size accounting firms

(with six or less partners/directors)

PRI ETRIIT (B ANBRIALNERA I EE)
M Big Four accounting firms

PR EAHADTT



Proactive Review FEIFEH

Screening and review of modified auditors’ reports BREARERFEREERREMBE
The FRC screened all 168 (2012:138) modified auditors’ reports issued in  ABHHE T AR 2013 FHKRMIFEREE B

2013. There were 185 (2012:150) modifications and 213 (2012:169) issues B 16819 (20124 : 13815) © EEJEA*B@#E

as some modified auditors’ reports contained more than one modification REBERZEHERES L ZN —EIFEREER

and/or more than one issue. No review was performed when a modification /s Z A —(EARIE - FIEERZERBEHR 185@

related only to an emphasis of matter. The FRC reviewed all other modified (20124 : 150%& ) & R B84 & £ 21348 (2012 4F :

auditors’ reports and made inquires when appropriate. 16948) - MERBMMAIELEYEIE  AIKBTE
EH - AREM T FAAEMIERREE R ZBAIR
& URRTEERELAR -

Analysis by modification

FERBERRBMRENBEIN

B Emphasis of matter B Qualified opinion B Disclaimer of opinion B Adverse opinion

EHWER REE TERRR BERR

Analysis by issue
FEREBERZEBMBENBEESN

| Going concern B Insufficient information B Business uncertainty
SEIS LR S BRT R 1% Ee AR =
B Lack of proper books and records
REBTFEZENRE Rk
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Review of financial statements EHUBRRE
The FRC selected 75 (2012:75) sets of financial statements for comprehensive — AAFH 2013 FRIZ A ME T HRENEM S
review in 2013 under its risk-based financial statements review programme, #7513 (2012 F:75%)) MBEmFELZEEN - £H
and the breakdown by selection criteria is as follows: BIERIEI DS

B Modified auditors’ reports
FEERE B RAREEIRE

[ Alleged non-compliance with accounting requirements and/or auditing or reporting
irregularities based on media reports
BEBREESMIERGTREFTER / IEFAHERTETR
B Newly-listed entities
EmER
[l Change of auditors
B HAAZ AT

Accounting theme — deferred taxation
it EE —EIERIA
Industry theme — forestry and agriculture
TEIE-MAREREE

[ Random basis
et 3iiited

Newly-listed entities
HLEmERE

Frequent change of directors and senior management

BEBREZENDRTHRAR

Change of auditors

F R EAD

Listed entities using ASBE

AR g RN ETHE R

Overseas auditors

TEIMZELED

Small audit firm dealing with complex audit issues

HE AR/ NAUZ SR R IR AR S BV B ST R RE

B Alleged non-compliance with accounting requirements and/or auditing or reporting
irregularities; listed entities subject to HKEX’s intervention; or prolonged suspended
listed entities (other than shells)

BIRATERGAREFTER / KA FAKERTETR  WEKPAN AR LT
B2 RERS EHEB(ZRAFMRIN)

Financial statements with prior period adjustments suggesting investors relying on
prior period financial statements have been misled

e AT B B B T sk (IR E B X2 A BB 5 3 R R S )

Industry theme — mining

TEREE - REE

' The review cycle commences in July each year.
BN EGET ARG -
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Summaries of Completed Investigations and Enquiry

In 2013, the FRC adopted five investigation reports completed by the Audit
Investigation Board, and two enquiry reports completed by the Financial
Reporting Review Committee. The auditing irregularities identified in the
investigations have been referred to the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants to determine if disciplinary action is warranted. The FRC
also requested the entity involved in the enquiry case to remove the identified
non-compliance with accounting requirements, and the listed entity made
prior year adjustments in its subsequent financial statements to rectify such
non-compliance.

EEANAERENEREE
R2013F - ARHEA T EFAETZEGTHHE
FTHERSE  RUBERBRIZEESHMTEEMR
o FUSRBAABTANAEER  DEIE
BEMACRE  UEBRGEHLCEERED - &
BNEREZENN EMEEAEDHANTER
CHHTEE MZREITMERNEEEERNITB
AR AEAE  HIETERER -

Investigations

(@
= 1

Recognition of impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets

Background

There were significant declines in the quoted market prices of the company’s
listed equity investments (classified as available-for-sale financial assets) below
their costs. The company used other valuation techniques to justify that no
impairment was required. It recognized the difference between the quoted
market price and the cost of the investment in equity, not profit or loss.

Issues

Whether the auditor had formed an appropriate audit opinion on the
financial statements, and had properly performed their audit with an
attitude of professional scepticism.

Analysis

e The financial reporting standard states that the fair value of quoted
equity investments should be the published price in an active market,
and a significant decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost
should be recognized as impairment loss. It was not appropriate for the
company to use other valuation and the financial reporting standards
were not followed.

e As the financial impact of such non-compliance was material, the
auditor should have modified its audit opinion.

e The auditor did not (a) critically assess the validity and appropriateness
of the impairment assessment of the available-for-sale financial assets,
and (b) properly perform their audit with an attitude of professional
scepticism.

e A &2 B E E AR E R

B

RAH ETERFE (BRAREESREE) T
SRFARERBERKA - AREMBEMEETE
EREFTIRAENER - URHARRERER
RERAHZ M IR R RER

B R
BB LHPBRRERRENEAERL - UK
B NERIERE L ZZETER TIE

pall)

o MBWmELERIIR  EHRERENAAEE
ERINERT IS ARIRE  MALEERRE
R A - ERERIRERK - AR AEAMMA
BERRLENEE - BB RS ER
HIE °

s ANTENFTEMNMBZEEAN  ZEEED
BEEREE ROZEENHE
o XEAEDIE (a) WA E S BB EMRIERN G

ERBMPEE EHIEHIERIE - (b) UFFEIE
SEARE R EETRA L(E -
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Decision
There were auditing irregularities and the report has been referred to the
HKICPA.

Reminders
Auditors should:

(a) critically assess the validity and appropriateness of the impairment
assessment made by the company if equity investments have published
price quotation in an active market; and

(b) perform their audits with an attitude of professional scepticism
recognizing circumstances that might exist which cause material
misstatement in the financial statements.

RE
BPRARBMEERTTETR  ERABEEE
EhASENARERE -

=EE
TZEREDFE

(a) EEZRENERTSFERRRER  HA
AIHREFEERERLEE - (EHHLHIER
i &

(b) AEXREREE - FHIUHFBRRERKEK
SEIMAVIEIL ©

Case
Bz 2

Fair value measurement of consideration shares

Background

The company issued shares as consideration for an acquisition of a
subsidiary. These shares were measured at the issue price rather than the
published price at the acquisition date. It considered that the published price
of its shares at the acquisition date was not a reliable indicator of the fair
value due to the thinness of the market of its shares. The auditor concurred
with this view.

Issues
Whether the auditor had formed an appropriate audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Analysis
1. The company’s shares were traded daily over a period preceding the
acquisition date. There was no evidence suggesting:

(a) these transactions were not traded on an arm’s length basis; and
(b) the market was thin at the acquisition date.

2. The published price of the company’s shares reflected their fair value
at the acquisition date. The company should use the published price
of its shares at the acquisition date to measure the fair value of the
consideration shares.

Decision

The auditor failed to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to support the
unmodified opinion expressed on the financial statements. The investigation
report has been referred to the HKICPA.
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Reminders
Auditors should obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support the
fair value measurement of consideration shares issued for acquisitions.

RE
ZHEERE R NEENETER BB
BITHRERDN AR BERERMS

Case 3
{[EES
Depreciation of revalued plant and machinery, measurement of

consideration shares and presentation of EPS

Background
The company did not:

(a) depreciate its revalued plant and machinery and disclose their carrying
amounts had they been carried under the cost model;

(b) measure the shares issued for the acquisitions of a subsidiary and an
equity investment at their acquisition-date fair values, instead it used the
share prices as stated in the sales and purchase agreements; and

(c) calculate correctly the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the purpose of presenting the loss per share for the
year.

Issues
Whether the auditor had formed an appropriate audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Analysis

The auditor failed to identify the above issues. They did not obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to support their unmodified audit opinion on the
financial statements.

The engagement partner and the engagement quality control reviewer
failed to act diligently according to the applicable technical and professional
standards when providing professional services in the audit.

Decision
There were auditing irregularities and the report has been referred to the
HKICPA.

Reminders

Auditors should obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence during the
course of the audit and act diligently in accordance with the applicable
technical and professional standard when providing professional services.

BUEEA T BRIME RESTIZTE i &
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Case
4

EES

Fair value measurements of the assets acquired and the consideration

transferred in an acquisition

Background

In the acquisition of a subsidiary, the company recognized and measured (a)
the assets acquired with reference to their carrying amounts in the books of
the acquiree and (b) the considerations transferred at the principal amount,
instead of measuring them at their acquisition-date fair values.

Issues
Whether the auditor had formed an appropriate audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Analysis

The auditor did not plan the audit with an attitude of professional scepticism
and did not obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support their
unmodified audit opinion.

The engagement partner and the engagement quality control reviewer
failed to act diligently according to the applicable technical and professional
standards when providing professional services in the audit.

Decision

There were auditing irregularities and the report has been referred to the
HKICPA.

Reminders

Auditors should obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support the
fair value measurements of assets acquired and considerations transferred in
an acquisition, and act diligently in accordance with the applicable technical
and professional standard when providing professional services.

HRIEE R RBEEEN T BEENEARAR
EfE

HE
BB —RHBA R - AR : (a) KSR
FROEEERR R HARE | RO SRR
BB -

BREE
ZEMADHPBHRRERRENELER -

DT
REENE G AT X R REREER T - LR
BRHREENBRAEBBAFELERBNETE
"o

BERBBANABARETEERNERARR
BHBRIZREIM B R HHE R -

RE
HREEATETR  RMESIAEREENEE

BEHIAE ©

RE
ZEENERRUS R0 EE MR IR - USFHEBIR
BHEAGAEMEBEENMEBEERREXNRERNR
AEE  ARBBRBREMANERRERHERR
& o

Case

A= 2

Business combination and impairment of goodwill

Background

The company failed to recognize separately the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed in a business combination. It also failed to recognize
deferred tax liabilities on the taxable temporary differences arising from
the fair value adjustments on the intangible assets acquired. The business
combination was partly settled by the issuance of convertible bonds which
the company failed to account for their components appropriately. In
the annual goodwill impairment assessment, the company allocated the
goodwill to a cash-generating unit larger than its operating segment,
and failed to fully disclose the estimates used to measure the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating units containing goodwill.
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Issues

Whether the auditor had developed a detailed audit plan and obtained
sufficient appropriate audit evidence relating to the business combination,
convertible bonds and goodwill, and had formed an appropriate audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Analysis

In this audit, the auditor failed in the following respects to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to support its audit opinion on the financial
statements, in particular, the auditor failed to:

e plan the audit, in relation to the business combination, with professional
scepticism, recognizing that circumstances might exist that caused
the financial statements to be materially misstated, and did not
develop an audit plan which included the nature, timing and extent of
audit procedures to be performed in order to reduce audit risk to an
acceptably low level;

e obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to identify, or to
address appropriately, the above non-compliance with accounting
requirements;

e evaluate the professional competence and the objectivity of the valuer
and the appropriateness of the valuer’s work as audit evidence for the
purpose of the audit;

e obtain written representations from the management of the company
regarding the reasonableness of significant assumptions used by
management in determining the fair values of intangible assets acquired
and convertible bonds issued; and

e prepare audit documentation that provided a sufficient and appropriate
record of the basis for the auditor’s report and evidenced that the audit
was performed in accordance with auditing standards and applicable
legal and regulatory requirements.

The engagement partner and the engagement quality control reviewer
failed to act diligently according to the applicable technical and professional
standards when providing professional services in the audit.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Decision
There were auditing irregularities and the report has been referred to the
HKICPA.

Reminders
Auditor should:

plan an audit with an attitude of professional skepticism recognizing
that circumstances may exist that cause the financial statements to be
materially misstated;

develop a detailed audit plan which includes the nature, timing and
extent of audit procedures to be performed by engagement team
members in order to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
reduce audit risk to an acceptably low level;

evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the expert,
understand their work and assess the appropriateness of the expert’s
work as audit evidence for the purpose of the audit;

design and perform audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of obtaining sufficient appropriate audit
evidence; and

obtain written representations from the management of the company
regarding the reasonableness of significant assumptions used in making
accounting estimates including fair value measurements.
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Enquiry '

Case

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Issues

1.

The exploration and evaluation assets acquired and the goodwill arising
from the acquisition of a subsidiary might not be properly recognized
and measured.

. The gross carrying amount and the accumulated amortization of the

exploration and evaluation assets acquired might not be properly
recognized and disclosed.

The non-cash and non-cash equivalent consideration in the acquisition
might be wrongly included in the consolidated cash flow statement.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2013

WhE— K F R A

BREE
1. KRBT RARMBSHEEREFEEEM
EENBERREZERARGE -

2. YRfE 0B R RTHE B E R A AR (B A1 R 5T 3
BIARAX SRR RIE -

3. RS EFReFEVREXTREBIEERS
BHEMERA °



Analysis

1. The company did not recognize and measure the assets acquired and the
goodwill at the acquisition date according to paragraphs 36, 51 and 52
of HKFRS 3 Business Combination.

2. The gross carrying amount and the accumulated amortization of the
exploration and evaluation assets acquired should not have been
separately recognized and disclosed according to paragraphs 33, 118(c)
and 118(e)(i) of HKAS 38 Intangible Assets.

3. The non-cash and non-cash equivalent consideration of the acquisition
should not have been included in the consolidated cash flow statement.
The consolidated cash flow statement was materially misstated and did
not comply with paragraphs 1 and 43 of HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements.

Decision

We issued a notice requiring the company to remove the non-compliance
by making retrospective restatements of the opening balances and the
comparative figures in the next sets of financial statement.

Reminders

Preparers of financial statements should ensure that the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are recognized at
their fair values at the acquisition date, in order to properly recognize and
measure any goodwill arising from the business combination.
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" The summary of one completed enquiry report is not disclosed at this stage because the
auditor of the relevant listed company is currently under our investigation.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

FRC Decisions

In some cases where the potential non-compliance with accounting
requirements does not compromise the presentation of the financial
statements, the FRC does not initiate an investigation or enquiry. Instead,
it issues a letter of advice, which includes findings and suggested
improvements or remedial measures for the listed entities and/or their
auditors to consider. The FRC issued 11 such letters of advice in 2013.
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Decision 1
RE
Disclosure of sensitivity in the valuation method adopted and

retrospective adjustment to EPS

Issues

1. Insufficient disclosure on estimation uncertainty in determining the
fair value of forestry land and plantation forest assets.

2. The loss per share for FY2010 was not adjusted in the FY2011
financial statements to reflect the issue of shares in March 2011 for a
business combination under common control.

Analysis
1. Approximately 45% of the net assets of the company are forestry land
and plantation forest assets.

In the notes to FY2011 Financial Statements, the company disclosed
that the valuer had applied the net present value approach to
determine the fair value of forestry land and plantation forest assets,
which involved estimates whose changes might affect the fair value
significantly.

The company did not make the disclosures as required by HKAS 1
(Revised) :

o The sensitivity of carrying amounts to the methods, assumptions
and estimates used in the valuation, including the reasons for
the sensitivity.

o The expected resolution of the uncertainty and the range of

reasonably possible outcomes within the next financial year for
the carrying amounts of the assets affected.
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2. During FY2011, the company completed a common control acquisition
which was accounted for using merger accounting under AG 5.

The consideration for the combination included an allotment of the
company’s shares to the vendor in March 2011.The loss per share
for FY2010 presented in the FY2011 financial statements was not
adjusted to reflect the issue of shares for the combination required
under AG 5.

Decision

The company failed to comply with HKAS 1 (Revised) and AG 5, and we
issued a letter of advice to the company to this effect.

Reminders

The management of companies should observe the requirements of HKAS 1
(Revised) and AG 5 when preparing their financial statements.
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Decision 2
RE
Disclosure of information to assist users in understanding financial

statements

Issues

The financial statements did not provide information on the relationship
between the revenue, trade receivables, cost of sales/services and payables
to merchants.

Analysis

The company acted as the agent of the merchants to collect the sales
proceeds for the goods/services sold to the customers.

The trade receivables at 31 December 2010 were more than the sum of
revenue for the last two years, and these receivables were aged less than 6
months. The payables at 31 December 2010 and 2011 were 28 and 10 times
more than the cost of sales/services rendered for the respective years. These
payables were aged less than 12 months.

The company explained that:

o Its trade receivables were the gross sales proceeds receivable from
customers;

o The cost of sales/services mainly represented business tax;

o The payables to merchants represented the sales proceeds collected
by the company after deducting its service charges; and
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

. Its revenue is a percentage of its sales proceeds.

HKAS 1 (Revised) requires the company to make disclosure that would assist
users in understanding how transactions are reflected in reported financial
performance and financial position. The financial statements did not provide
sufficient information to allow users to understand the relationship between
the trade receivables, revenue, cost of sales/services and payables to
merchants. The company should provide more details regarding the revenue
recognition and the associated costs in their financial statements.

Decision

The company failed to comply with HKAS 1 (Revised) and we issued a letter
of advice to the company to this effect.

Reminders

The management of companies should provide relevant information to assist
users to understand the financial statements.
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Decision 3
RE
Disclosure of useful information and estimation uncertainties in

interim financial statements

Issues

The extent of the disclosure of information and related estimation uncertainties
in the interim financial statements.

Analysis

Shortly before the end of the interim period, the company proposed to
repurchase certain inventories from its distributors within a period and at
an agreed price, set-off the amount due by the distributors and resell those
inventories though other channels.

In preparing its interim financial statements, the company recognized
the loss on the sales of repurchased inventories and assessed no further
impairment losses on the trade receivables and inventories. This assessment
was subject to the final outcome of the above proposal, future market
conditions and other estimation uncertainties.

Before the end of the financial year, the company issued a profit warning

announcement which disclosed that additional losses were incurred as a
result of the proposal.
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HKAS 34 requires the provision of material financial information in the
interim financial statements to allow readers to have an understanding of
the changes in a company’s financial position or performance since the last
annual reporting period.

In this case, additional disclosures on the latest situation of the arrangement,
possible outcome of the proposal and other relevant management estimation
uncertainties should be disclosed in the interim financial statements.

Decision

The company failed to fully comply with HKAS 34 and we issued a letter of
advice to the company to this effect.

Reminders

Timely and reliable interim financial reporting improves the ability to
understand the company’s capacity to generate earnings and cash flows and
its financial condition and liquidity. The management of companies should
disclose significant events in the interim financial statements according to
HKAS 34.
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Decision
4

RE

Disclosure of additional information on material items

Issues

No information was given in the financial statements on a material item
named as “other decrease” in the reconciliation of the cost of fixed assets at
the beginning and end of the year.

Analysis

The company has self-constructed fixed assets. It recognized the construction in
progress based on actual construction expenditures incurred. The construction
in progress is transferred to fixed assets when the asset is ready for its intended
use.

The company explained that the “other decrease” category represented
the adjustment of the actual construction expenditures incurred for these
self-constructed fixed assets upon settlement.

ASBE 30 requires companies to provide additional information for any
material item in the notes to financial statements.

Decision

The company did not strictly follow the requirements of ASBE 30 and we
issued a letter of advice to the company to this effect.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Reminders

The management of companies should provide descriptive information
for any material item in the financial statements which is relevant for the
understanding of the users.
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Decision
5

RE

Disclosure of unrecognized deferred tax assets for unused tax losses

Issues

The information regarding the unrecognized deferred tax assets for the
unused tax losses was not disclosed.

Analysis
The company did not recognize deferred tax assets for unused tax losses; the
relevant information was not disclosed in the financial statements.

ASBE 18 requires a company to disclose the amount (and expiry date, if any)
of deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses for which no
deferred tax asset has been recognized.

Decision

The company failed to fully comply with ASBE 18 and we issued a letter of
advice to the company to this effect.

Reminders

The management of companies should observe the disclosure requirements
of ASBE 18 when companies have unrecognized deferred tax assets.
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Decision
s O

Inconsistency of financial statements in different languages

Issues

Inconsistency between the Chinese-version financial statements and their
English translation.

Analysis

The company failed to maintain full consistency in disclosing certain notes
to the financial statements in the Chinese-version financial statements and
those in the English translation. Some of the disclosures were only made in
the Chinese-version financial statements.
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Companies are required to present information in a manner that provides
relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information in the
financial statements. Therefore, the company should ensure the consistency
of the disclosures made in different notes to the financial statements; and
that between the Chinese-version and the English-version of the financial
statements.

Decision

We issued a letter of advice to the company to reflect our observations.

Reminders

The management of companies should ensure the consistency of their
financial statements in different language versions.

NGIVVN R e YiE] I

A LB LS

RTEROER - Bt - A B ERERT RN
RRMTRERBEE — B -

RE

BMRAREHELR - SIERMNBERS -

REE

AEERERBRTERE S RANT MR AR E

iﬁo

Decision 7

RE

Whether the calculation of the loss per share complied with
HKAS 33

Issues

1. The loss per share in 2009 was adjusted in the 2010 financial
statements to reflect a placement of shares in August 2010.

2. The loss per share in 2009 and 2010 were not adjusted in the 2010
financial statements to reflect a bonus issue completed in January

2011.
Analysis
1. Since the share placement to independent third parties did not affect

the capital used to produce profit or loss in 2009, the company should
not have adjusted the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding in 2009 to calculate the loss per share for 2009 in the
2010 financial statements.

2. In the 2010 rights issue, the company offered bonus shares to
shareholders, which resulted in the effective exercise price of
the rights issue being less than the fair value of the company’s
shares. When calculating the weighted average number of shares
outstanding, the company should have reflected the discount as
effectively a bonus to the shareholders in the form of shares issued for
nil consideration.

The calculation of the weighted average number of shares in 2009
and 2010 should have been adjusted in the 2010 financial statements
in accordance with HKAS 33.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Decision

The company failed to comply with HKAS 33 and we issued a letter of advice
to the company.

Reminders

The management of companies should observe the requirements of HKAS
33 when calculating earnings per share.
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Decision
8

REE
Disclosure of useful information and estimation uncertainties in

financial statements

Issues

1. No information was given in the financial statements on a material
profit or loss item named “Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries”.

2. The extent of the disclosure of estimation uncertainties in the financial
statements was insufficient.

Analysis

1. The company recognized a gain on deregistration of subsidiaries
(accounting for 111% of its consolidated profit for the year) in its
financial statements.

HKAS 1 (Revised) requires an entity to make disclosure that would
assist users in understanding how transactions are reflected in
reported financial performance and financial position. Therefore, the
company should disclose the details of the subsidiaries deregistered,
such as their name, assets and/or liabilities before deregistration, in its
financial statements.

2. The company recognized an overprovision of prior year’s income tax
expenses in its financial statements. The financial statements also disclosed
that no deferred tax assets were recognized due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams.

The determination of provision of income tax expenses and recognition
of deferred tax assets involved management’s assumptions and
judgments which might result in a material adjustment to its assets and/
or liabilities in the next financial year. Therefore, the company should
disclose information about these assumptions and judgments in its
financial statements.

Decision

The company failed to comply with HKAS 1 (Revised) and we issued a letter
of advice to the company to this effect.
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Reminder

Management of companies should observe the requirements of HKAS 1
(Revised) when preparing their financial statements.
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Decision
)

RE

Disclosure of relevant information and presentation of material line

items

Issues

1.

Inappropriate tax rate used to explain the relationship between the
accounting profit and the tax income.

Incorrect presentation of amount due from subsidiaries in the
statement of financial position.

Insufficient disclosures for a gain on bargain purchase and financial
instruments.

Analysis

1.

The company did not have assessable profits under Hong Kong profits
tax and its subsidiaries” major operation was located in the Mainland.
The company used the Hong Kong profits tax rate to explain the
relationship between its consolidated loss before taxation and tax
income.

HKAS 12 requires an entity to use an applicable tax rate to explain the
relationship between accounting profit and tax expense/income. The
explanation should provide the most meaningful information to the
financial statements users. Therefore, it would be more meaningful to
the financial statements users if the company used the applicable tax
rate in the Mainland to provide the explanation.

The company had a material balance of amounts due from the
subsidiaries (92% of the company’s net assets). These amounts were
categorized under the financial statements line item “Interests in
subsidiaries” and presented in the statement of financial position of
the company.

HKAS 1 (Revised) requires an entity to present additional line items
in the statement of financial position when such presentation is
relevant to an understanding of the financial position. As the amounts
due from subsidiaries were material, the company should separately
present the amounts in the statement of financial position.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

3.  The company recognized a gain on bargain purchase as a result of
a business combination. Convertible preference shares were issued
as part of the purchase consideration for the business combination.
There was no disclosure about (i) the reason for a gain; and (ii) the
methods and assumptions applied to determine the fair value of the
convertible preference shares in the financial statements.

HKFRS 3 (Revised) requires an entity to provide a description of why
the bargain purchase resulted in a gain. HKFRS 7 requires an entity to
disclose the methods and assumptions applied to determine the fair
value of financial instruments. Therefore, The company should make
the above disclosures in the financial statements.

Decision

The company failed to comply with HKAS 1 (Revised), HKAS 12, HKFRS 3
(Revised) and HKFRS 7, and we issued a letter of advice to the company to
this effect.

Reminder

Management of companies should observe the requirements of HKAS 1
(Revised), HKAS 12, HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKFRS 7 when preparing their
financial statements.
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Decision

RE

Classification and consistency in disclosures

10

Issues

1. The cash flows from government grants were incorrectly classified
under operating activities in statement of cash flows.

2. The reimbursement on withholding tax from a shareholder was
incorrectly credited to total comprehensive income.

3.  The ordinary shares used to calculate the basic earnings per share
were incorrect.

4. The deposits paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment were
incorrectly classified as current assets.

5.  The information relating to bank borrowings as disclosed in different
notes to the financial statements was inconsistent.

6. The opening balance of the share premium of the company as
disclosed in the financial statements was incorrect.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2013

DR REL— 21

B A
1. BEWEBELENRESRNREINERTHR
DEREETES -

2. BEBRRMNENEIOBERS AGZE WEREE -

3. EAERNEBERREGIESRERAT -

4. BAREBAYE  BEERENE MRS HER

DEBRPEE -

5. ERBERERRTRMEARENBTEEE
FREF— 8 -

6. BIBMAMBEOD TR RO RSB Y
TIEH -



Analysis

1.

The company had unused government grants for constructing
qualifying assets and had recognized the grants as deferred revenue.
The relevant cash flows from these grants were classified under
operating activities in the statement of cash flows.

HKAS 7 requires cash payments related to an acquisition of property,
plant and equipment to be classified as investing activities. As the
government grants related to the construction of qualifying assets,
the company should classify the relevant cash flows under investing
activities.

The company recognized a reimbursement on withholding tax from a
shareholder as other revenue in the total comprehensive income.

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2010 defines income
as increases in economic benefits during the accounting period
in the form of inflows or enhancements of assets or decreases of
liabilities that result in increases in equity, other than those relating to
contributions from equity participants.

HKAS 1 (Revised) states that total comprehensive income is the
change in equity during a period resulting from transactions and other
events, other than those changes resulting from transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners.

Since the reimbursement on withholding tax from a shareholder
was a transaction with owners in their capacity as owners, it should
be directly recognized in equity, rather than in total comprehensive
income.

The company completed a group reorganization in December 2010
and applied merger accounting under AG 5 to account for this
reorganization. In 2011, the company issued ordinary shares by way
of placing and public offer for listing purpose. The ordinary shares
issued for the listing were included in calculating the basic earnings
per share for 2010 (comparative figure of the financial statements).

HKAS 33 requires the use of the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period for calculating basic earnings per
share. The ordinary shares issued by the company for listing purpose
were not part of a common control combination. Therefore, these
ordinary shares should not be included in the calculation of basic
earnings per share for the comparative period.

The company classified deposits paid for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment as current assets.

aN

#

NAFEREEREEMEBREREANK
N@EETJEEZJ?%LLHSU\ - MAB R #I3R & 7% Bl
RIBEMERTEIBRLETY -

BRIKEB G ERE7FRONBRE - BAY
¥ BERRBOERRSNRES EAK

BEg - AN LBT M EEANEREE
REE  ARAESERERSRDOERRER
) o

REMBRRNENENGERRES RS
PR EAIRA -

2010 FE ¥R E 2 BLREZR DR EWRARIA
WERA  HEMEE - SR BESHE
=B INE R GER B R 2 B ) B BR) i 38
ANE St HR R A A B e ©

(CEBEERE 15%) (BIEFT) 58 - ,Z*A
W AR R R R 5 A M EIR (FE2K B st
BEUAEGMETHR %)%@ZE’JH}%WF“_“
) o

AR ENTENHBESFTEANLY
METHR S » WLIEB EEERERNERMm
bR G W HRRE o

ANAR2010F 12 AT EEER @ Wik
FHESI B SRR S RIERAIAR - 1
2001 RAlBEHELET  UEERAHE
ERREFTLBER - A ETMEBETAHLBER
FTA2010 FBREARRBF (M IEHRE LR
Hig) -

RIE(EARIHEAE 3 HINBRE - AR
SR 8 0 £ 5 1580 B RN R B 3
SREARF - AFABE EHMRTH Y
AL IEF — 1 TR A B — 3543 -
b 0 5 R T A b R AT e R
ARF o

RAFEARBAYE  BEERENE MR
ENBRRBDEE

BISERRE 2013 £k

73




74

OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Since the deposits did not meet the criteria of current assets under
HKAS 1 (Revised), the company should classify them as non-current
assets.

One of the notes to the financial statements disclosed that a certain
amount of bank borrowings were repayable over five years. However,
the note related to liquidity risk disclosed that none of the bank
borrowings had a contractual maturity over five years.

Companies are required to present information in a manner that
provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information
in the financial statements. Therefore, the company should ensure the
consistency of the disclosures made in different notes to the financial
statements.

The first ordinary share of the company was issued in February 2010.
However, the note to financial statements related to the reserves of
the company (company level) disclosed that the company had share
premium on 1 January 2010. The relevant disclosures were inconsistent.
The company should ensure the consistency of the disclosures made in
the notes to the financial statements.

Decision

The company failed to comply with Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2010, HKAS 1 (Revised), HKAS 7 and HKAS 33, and we issued a
letter of advice to the Company to this effect.

Reminder

Management of companies should observe the requirements of Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2010, HKAS 1 (Revised), HKAS 7 and
HKAS 33 when preparing their financial statements.
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Decision
s 11

Disclosures relating to earnings per share and financial instruments

Issues

1.

The group did not disclose any dilutive effect on basic earnings per share.

The group did not disclose how it considered and incorporated
collateral into its credit risk management, and how such incorporation
related to its disclosures of maximum loss due to credit risk.

The group did not disclose whether the interest rate sensitivity analysis
on net interest income and other comprehensive income included any
impact of a change in interest rates on financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss.
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Analysis

1.

The financial statements of the company only disclosed basic earnings
per share. Since certain share options were recognized in the financial
statements, it is unclear whether there was any dilutive effect on basic
earnings per share.

HKAS 33 requires an entity to present basic and diluted earnings per
share with equal prominence for all periods presented.

Therefore, the company should disclose diluted earnings per share. If
basic and diluted earnings per share are equal, the company should
present both in one line in the statement of comprehensive income.

The company disclosed the fair value of collaterals for loans and
advances to customers that were past due but not impaired and
individually impaired respectively.

HKFRS 7 requires an entity to disclose a description of collateral held
as security and of other credit enhancements, and their financial effect
(e.g. a quantification of the extent to which collateral and other credit
enhancements mitigate credit risk) in respect of the amount that best
represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.

Hence, the company should disclose information relating to how
the group considered and incorporated collateral into its credit risk
management, and how such incorporation related to its disclosures of
maximum loss due to credit risk.

The company disclosed the interest rate sensitivity analysis on net
interest income and other comprehensive income as required by
HKFRS 7.

It is unclear whether the interest rate sensitivity analysis includes any
impact of a change in interest rates on financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss. The company should disclose the impact
of such in future financial statements if it had not done so.

Decision

The company failed to comply with HKAS 33 and HKFRS 7, and we issued a
letter of advice to the company to this effect.

Reminder

Management of companies should observe the disclosure requirements of
HKAS 33 and HKFRS 7 when preparing their financial statements.
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Honorary Advisory Panel is established to assist the FRC in
discharging its functions and responsibilities arising from
or in relation to the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance.
The function of the Honorary Advisers is to advise the FRC,
including its committees and staff, with respect to any matter
referred to the Honorary Advisers by the FRC.

The Panel Members are:

Mr Nicholas Allen

Mr Stephen Chang

Dr Moses Cheng, GBS, JP

Mr Francis Ching

Mr Martin Hadaway, JP

Dr PM Kam (from 1 April 2013)

Mr Edward Kwan

Mr Albert Li

Dr Eric Li, GBS, JP (from 10 January 2013)
Mr Tim Lui, BBS, JP (from 10 January 2013)
Mr Michael Scales

Mr Stephen Taylor

" HONORARY ADVISORY PANEL
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Panel Convenors
Mrs Edith Chan (until 15 July 2013)
Mr Wilson Fung (until 15 July 2013)
Mr Robert Gazzi (from 16 July 2013)
Prof Amy Lau (until 15 July 2013)
Dr Eric Li, GBS, JP
(until 15 July 2013)
Mr David Lie-A-Cheong, SBS, OM, JP
(until 15 July 2013)
Mr Andrew Mak, JP (from 16 July 2013)
Ms Catherine Morley (from 16 July 2013)
Ms Edith Shih (from 16 July 2013)
Mr Stephen Taylor (until 15 July 2013)
Mr Alvin Wong (until 15 July 2013)
Dr Kelvin Wong, JP (from 16 July 2013)
Prof Wong Tak Jun (from 16 July 2013)

Members
Mr Jamie Allen (from 16 July 2013)
Prof Gary Biddle (from 16 July 2013)
Mr Albert Chan
Ms Annie Chan (until 15 July 2013)
Mr Edmond Chan (until 15 July 2013)
Ms Mabel Chan
Mr Morison Chan
Ms Dilys Chau (until 15 July 2013)
Prof Kevin Chen
Mrs Lina Cheng (until 15 July 2013)
Prof Peter Cheng (from 16 July 2013)
Mr Ambrose Cheung, MH, JP

(from 16 July 2013)
Ms vy Cheung (from 16 July 2013)
Mr Cheung Kwan Hoi (from 16 July 2013)
Mr Mohan Datwani (from 16 July 2013)
Ms Ding Chen (from 16 July 2013)
Mr Vincent Duhamel
Mr lan Farrar (from 16 July 2013)
Ms Cindy Fu (from 16 July 2013)
Mr Eugene PC Fung (until 15 July 2013)
Mr Eugene Fung, SC
Mr Christopher Hall (until 15 July 2013)
Mr Paul Hebditch (from 16 July 2013)
Mr Kenneth Lam (until 15 July 2013)
Mr Nelson Lam (from 16 July 2013)
Mrs Ayesha Lau (until 15 July 2013)
Mr Kevin Lau (until 15 July 2013)

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2013

#% MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS
V" EEeREEEES

FINANCIAL REPORTING REVIEW PANEL

HEERRNEAE

ZEEBEA

PREE IS+ (E2 201347 A 158 A1)

BHEELE (EE2013F7 158 A1)

Robert Gazzi %t 4 (F320134F 7 A 16 BiR)

RIERHBHFE(AE2013%F7 8158 A1H)

FREBL  SRHEE - AFEt
(AE2013F7 8158 51E)

ZARA - REFIEE - OM - KFEML
(EZE2013F7A158 A1)

BEERAF#E(FE2013F7 516 BiR)

B4+ (H20134F7 A16 A#E)

MeEREL+ (201367 A16 BE)

Stephen Taylor e 4 (E £ 201347 A158 A1LH)

=EEELE(EE20134F7 A158 A1)

|mAME LT - KF4+(H201347 A16 A1)

EEEHE (H201347 A16Hi)

24=1

NHEBALE(R201347 A16 A1)

Gary Biddle (3% (12013 7 A 16 Hi2)

BRASIER S A

FREM4+ (EE 20137 A 158 A1)

fRE=#c et (EE 201347 A158 A1)

PREELZ+

BRI

ASE4LZ+ (EE20134F7 158 A1L)

PR SR IR

BE B+ (EE20134F7 A158 A1)

B R (R 2013F7 A16 Bi#E)

KRR RERE - ATHT
(20137 A168#E)

REAM A+ (201347 16 A#E)

REEEAE (H201347 16 A#E)

SEA%A (R2013F7 A 16 B#E)

TR+ (H2013F7 16 H#E)

MIESEE

HEERAE(HR2013F7 A168i#E)

EEEiLt (h201347 416 Hi)

BB E (EE 20137 A15 B ALL)

ISR ELE - BRAEA

B BELE(EE2013F7 8158 A1)

Paul Hebditch %4 (R 201347 A 16 HiE)

ML (EE201347 8158 A1)

MEEELE (HR201347 416 Hi)

2|ERE 2+ (AE20134F7 8158 A1LL)

BIBELEE (EE2013F7 A15B A1)



Ms Cecilia Lee (until 15 July 2013)
Ms Rosita Lee (from 16 July 2013)
Mr Alden Leung
Mr Andrew Leung, JP
Mr Brian Li, JP (until 15 July 2013)
Ms Cynthia Lim (from 16 July 2013)
Mr William Lim (from 16 July 2013)
Prof Lin Zhijun
Ms Alexandra Lo
Prof Low Chee Keong (until 15 July 2013)
Mrs Catherine Morley (until 15 July 2013)
Mr Hong Ng (from 16 July 2013)
Ms Melissa Pang, MH, JP
Mr Paul Phenix (from 16 July 2013)
Mr Gary Poon
Ms Josephine Price (until 15 July 2013)
Mr Paul Shieh, SC (from 16 July 2013)
Ms Barbara Shiu (until 27 March 2013)
Prof Bin Srinidhi (until 15 July 2013)
Ms Cynthia Tang (until 15 July 2013)
Ms Teo Chew Ping (from 16 July 2013)
Mr Tony Tsoi (until 15 July 2013)
Mr Paul Winkelmann

(until 15 July 2013)
Ms Anna Wong
Mr Wong Kim Man (from 16 July 2013)
Ms Priscilla Wong, JP (from 16 July 2013)
Mr Stephen Wong (from 16 July 2013)
Mr Thomas Wong (from 16 July 2013)
Ms Wendy Yung (from 16 July 2013)

AUDIT INVESTIGATION BOARD

Chairman
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (ex-officio)
(from 1 April 2013)
Dr PM Kam (ex-officio) (until 31 March 2013)

Members

Mr TS Chan

Ms Wincey Lam (from 16 December 2013)
Ms Anna Lau

Ms Florence Wong

Ms Joyce Woo
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" MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS (continued
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PROCESS REVIEW PANEL FEREES

Chairman xE

Mr Edmund Leung, SBS, JP RER  REFMEE - AP

Members K&

Mr Anthony Chow, SBS, JP FXERE  REFERE - KFatL
(from 1 November 2013) (B2013F11 A1 8#E)

Ms Angelina Kwan BELt

Mr Vincent Kwan (from 1 November 2013) BEKEX A (2013411 A1 8i#E)

Ms Elizabeth Law, MH, JP REZX  REIE - KT4L

Mr Peter Lo (until 31 October 2013) EENEE(EE2013F10A3181E)

Mr Joseph Pang, BBS, JP TEE WEMEE - KTHLT
(until 31 October 2013) (EZE2013F10A31H1E)

Mr John Poon, JP (ex-officio) EREAA T (EAKE)
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